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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-Q

(Mark One)

x Quarterly report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the Quarterly Period Ended July 31, 2013

¨ Transition report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
Commission File No. 001-35205

ENVIVIO, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 3663 94-3353255
(State or other jurisdiction of (Primary Standard Industrial (I.R.S. Employer
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incorporation or organization) Classification Code Number) Identification Number)
400 Oyster Point Boulevard, Suite 325

South San Francisco, California 94080

(650) 243-2700

(Address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of registrant�s principal executive
offices)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if
any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during
the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such
files).    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer� and �smaller reporting
company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer ¨ Accelerated filer ¨

Non-accelerated filer x  (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company ¨
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act).    Yes  ¨    No  x

The number of shares of the registrant�s Common Stock, $.001 par value, outstanding on September 3, 2013 was
27,611,366.
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PART I

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ENVIVIO, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

(UNAUDITED)

July 31,
2013

January 31,
2013

(in thousands)
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 52,563 $ 51,344
Short-term investments 451 3,517
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts 8,616 8,376
Inventory 296 708
Prepaid expenses and other assets 2,646 2,891
Deferred inventory costs 1,019 318

Total current assets 65,591 67,154

Property and equipment, net 4,152 5,003
Other assets 243 216

Total assets $ 69,986 $ 72,373

Liabilities and stockholders� equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 5,809 $ 4,953
Accrued compensation 4,484 3,395
Accrued liabilities 1,177 1,271
Deferred revenue, current 5,577 3,298

Total current liabilities 17,047 12,917

Deferred revenue, net of current portion 1,136 1,360
Other non-current liabilities 1,567 1,661
Deferred rent 876 874

Total liabilities 20,626 16,812
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Stockholders� equity:
Common stock 28 27
Additional paid-in capital 153,283 152,168
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (967) (868) 
Accumulated deficit (102,984) (95,766) 

Total stockholders� equity 49,360 55,561

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 69,986 $ 72,373

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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ENVIVIO, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations

(UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended
July 31, Six Months Ended July 31,
(in thousands, except for per share amounts)

2013 2012 2013 2012
Revenue:
Product $ 9,381 $ 8,893 $ 15,050 $ 20,545
Professional services and support 2,167 1,871 3,960 3,634

Total revenue 11,548 10,764 19,010 24,179

Cost of revenue:
Product 3,084 3,765 5,360 8,527
Professional services and support 560 358 1,025 732

Total cost of revenue 3,644 4,123 6,385 9,259

Gross profit 7,904 6,641 12,625 14,920

Operating expenses:
Research and development 2,439 2,034 4,406 4,028
Sales and marketing 4,879 5,628 9,942 11,370
General and administrative 2,942 3,050 5,495 5,730

Total operating expenses 10,260 10,712 19,843 21,128

Loss from operations (2,356) (4,071) (7,218) (6,208) 
Interest income net 13 24 32 15
Other income (expense), net 21 (162) 14 (147) 

Loss before provision for income taxes (2,322) (4,209) (7,172) (6,340) 
Income tax provision 157 69 46 175

Net loss $ (2,479) $ (4,278) $ (7,218) $ (6,515) 

Net loss per share of common stock, basic
and diluted $ (0.09) $ (0.16) $ (0.27) $ (0.32) 
Shares used in computing net loss per share
of common stock, basic and diluted 27,109,942 26,913,125 27,086,507 20,192,392

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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NVIVIO, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss

(UNAUDITED)

Three Months Ended July 31,Six Months Ended July 31,
(in thousands)

2013 2012 2013 2012
Net loss $ (2,479) $ (4,278) $ (7,218) $ (6,515) 
Other comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustment (79) (16) (99) (47) 

Other comprehensive loss: (79) (16) (99) (47) 

Total comprehensive loss $ (2,558) $ (4,294) $ (7,317) $ (6,562) 

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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ENVIVIO, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(UNAUDITED)

Six Months Ended July 31,
2013 2012

(in thousands)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss $ (7,218) $ (6,515) 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,432 1,177
Stock-based compensation 1,068 1,443
Bad debt expense 112 292
Provision for excess inventory 248 �  
Fair value remeasurement of warrant liability �  (18) 
Interest earned but not collected (19) (52) 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (352) (5,366) 
Inventory 163 (15) 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 265 (702) 
Deferred inventory costs (702) 1,138
Other assets (27) (381) 
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and accrued compensation 1,853 (962) 
Deferred revenue 2,054 (2,894) 
Other non-current liabilities and deferred rent 42 283

Net cash used in operating activities (1,081) (12,572) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of short-term investments �  (16,843) 
Sales and Maturities of short-term investments 3,050 �  
Capital expenditures (566) (1,623) 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 2,484 (18,466) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net proceeds from initial public offering, net of offering costs paid �  49,962
Proceeds from stock options exercised 48 85
Repayment of French governmental research grant (133) �  

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (85) 50,047

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (99) (47) 
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NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,219 18,962
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS�Beginning of period 51,344 27,405

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS�End of period $ 52,563 $ 46,367

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Interest paid $ 2 $ 60

Taxes paid $ 81 $ 125

NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Conversion of convertible preferred stock to common stock upon initial public offering $ �  $ 47,769

Offering costs not paid during period $ �  $ 1,505

Reclassification of warrant liability to stockholders� equity $ �  $ 84

Amortization of issuance costs related to Series I redeemable convertible preferred
stock $ �  $ 8

See notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.

6

Edgar Filing: ENVIVIO INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 10



Table of Contents

ENVIVIO, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)

1. Organization, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Envivio, Inc. (the �Company�) was incorporated in the state of Delaware on January 5, 2000. The Company is a
provider of software-based video processing and distribution solutions to mobile and broadband service providers,
cable multiple system operators, direct broadcast satellite service providers and content providers, which includes
broadcasters and content publishers, owners, aggregators and licensees. The Company is headquartered in South San
Francisco, California and maintains operations in North America, Europe (including research and development
operations in France) and Asia Pacific.

Basis of Presentation

The Company�s unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (�U.S. GAAP�) and applicable rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�) regarding interim financial reporting. Certain information and note
disclosures normally included in financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP have been condensed or omitted
pursuant to such rules and regulations. The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation. The January 31, 2013 condensed consolidated balance sheet was derived from audited
financial statements. This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q should be read in conjunction with the Company�s audited
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto contained in the Company�s annual report on Form 10-K which
was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 25, 2013 (�2013 Form 10-K�). The interim results
presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations that may be expected for the full fiscal year
ending January 31, 2014, or any other future period.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, the Company evaluates its estimates, including those related to
revenue recognition, allowances for doubtful accounts, valuation of deferred inventory costs, useful lives of property
and equipment, valuation of deferred tax assets, valuation of equity and liability instruments and stock-based
compensation. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments of the
carrying values of assets and liabilities. Actual results could differ materially from these estimates.

Significant Accounting Policies

The Company�s significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 of its audited consolidated financial statements
included in its 2013 Form 10-K. There have been no material changes to these significant accounting policies during
the six months ended July 31, 2013.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
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In February 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2013-02, �Comprehensive Income (Topic 220):
Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income� (ASU 2013-02). ASU 2013-02
requires companies to report the effect of significant reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive
income, by component, either on the face of the financial statements or in the notes to the financial statements and is
intended to help entities improve the transparency of changes in other comprehensive income. ASU 2013-02 does not
amend any existing requirements for reporting net income or other comprehensive income in the financial statements.
The new guidance is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15,
2012. The adoption of this guidance during the six months ended July 31, 2013 did not have a material impact on the
Company�s financial statements as the amount reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss to realized gain
or loss was immaterial for the quarter and six month period.

2. Balance Sheet Items

Short-term investments consist of $451,000 in corporate bonds and are classified as available-for-sale securities. The
Company has classified all available-for-sale securities with readily available markets as short-term, regardless of
whether the stated maturity is greater than one year from the current balance sheet date, because of the Company�s
intent to sell those securities as necessary.

7
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Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses reported as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive loss in stockholders� equity. For the periods presented, realized and unrealized gains
and losses on investments were not material. Amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive loss due
to sales or maturities of investments are reflected in interest income (expense), net in the statements of operations and
were not material. An impairment charge is recorded in the consolidated statements of operations for declines in fair
value below the cost of an individual investment that are deemed to be other than temporary. The Company assesses
whether a decline in value is temporary based on the length of time that the fair market value has been below cost, the
severity of the decline, as well as the Company�s intent and ability to hold, or plans to sell, the investment.

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts, consist of the following (in thousands):

July 31, 2013 January 31, 2013
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable, gross $ 9,482 $ 9,168
Allowance for doubtful accounts (866) (792) 

Accounts receivable, net $ 8,616 $ 8,376

Prepaid expenses and other current assets are comprised of the following (in thousands):

July 31, 2013 January 31, 2013
Foreign tax credits refundable $ 881 $ 1,683
Prepaid expenses 1,765 1,208

Prepaid expenses and other current assets $ 2,646 $ 2,891

Property and equipment, net, consist of the following (in thousands):

July 31, 2013 January 31, 2013
Computer and equipment $ 9,372 $ 8,925
Software 1,320 1,284
Funiture and fixtures 1,879 1,920
Leasehold improvements 129 129
Less: accumulated depreciation and
amortization (8,548) (7,255) 

Property and equipment, net $ 4,152 $ 5,003

Total depreciation and amortization expense was $0.7 million and $1.4 million during the three and six months ended
July 31, 2013 and $0.6 million and $1.2 million during the three and six months ended July 31, 2012, respectively.

3. Fair Value of Financial Instruments
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The fair value of the Company�s financial assets measured on a recurring basis is as follows (in thousands):

July 31, 2013 January 31, 2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1
Level

2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Money market funds(included in
cash and cash equivalents) $ 49,265 $ �  $ �  $ 49,265 $ 48,691 $ �  $ �  $ 48,691
Short-term investments $ �  451 �  451 �  3,517 �  3,517
The Company�s Level 2 assets consist exclusively of corporate bonds with quoted prices that are traded less frequently
than exchange-traded instruments. All of the Company�s Level 2 assets� values are determined using a pricing model
with inputs that are observable in the market or can be derived principally from or corroborated by observable market
data. The pricing model information is provided by third party entities. The Company did not have any Level 3
financial assets or liabilities outstanding as of July 31, 2013 and January 31, 2013.

4. Line of Credit and Other Non-Current Liabilities

The Company did not have any debt outstanding as of July 31, 2013 and January 31, 2013.

8
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Line of Credit

In November 2010, the Company entered into a revolving line of credit with a commercial lender that allowed for
draws of up to $5.0 million for general corporate purposes. Amounts borrowed were to be repaid prior to the maturity
date in November 2012.

On July 31, 2012, the Company amended its revolving line of credit agreement with a commercial lender to increase
the amount available from $5.0 million to $10.0 million for general corporate purposes and to extend the maturity date
to July 2014. Under the terms of this amendment, interest accrues at a floating per annum rate equal to the greater of
either (x) the prime rate plus 0.75% or (y) 4.00% and the Company is required to pay commitment fees of $25,000 per
year. The Company is subject to financial covenants requiring the Company to maintain a ratio of unrestricted cash,
cash equivalents and eligible accounts receivable to current liabilities less deferred revenue of at least 1.50 to 1.00. As
of July 31, 2013, the Company was in compliance with the covenants under the line of credit facility, as amended.

During the year ended January 31, 2013, the Company paid all outstanding amounts under this line of credit. The
Company did not draw down any outstanding amount under this line of credit during the six months ended July 31,
2013.

French Governmental Research Grants

The Company receives repayable research grants from regional French governmental agencies to fund research and
development activities. The French governmental research grants payable were $531,000 and $664,000 as of July 31
and January 31, 2013, respectively, and are included in other non-current liabilities.

5. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

The Company leases facilities under operating leases expiring at various dates through 2021. As of July 31, 2013,
future minimum payments under the Company�s non-cancellable leases are as follows (in thousands):

Year ending July 31, Future Lease payments
2014 $ 910
2015 830
2016 694
2017 596
2018 596
Thereafter 1,837

Total $ 5,463

Rental expense totaled $265,000 and $548,000 during the three and six months ended July 31, 2013 and $188,000 and
$383,000 during the three and six months ended July 31, 2012, respectively.

Litigation Matters
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On October 5, 2012 a complaint captioned Wiley v. Envivio, Inc., et al. CIV-517185 was filed in the Superior Court
of California, County of San Mateo, naming as defendants the Company, each of our directors, our chief executive
officer, our chief financial officer, and certain underwriters of our IPO. The lawsuit purports to be a class action on
behalf of purchasers of shares issued in the IPO and generally alleges that the registration statement for the IPO
contained materially false or misleading statements. The complaint purports to assert claims under the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, and seeks unspecified damages and other relief. On October 19, 2012 a similar complaint
captioned Toth v. Envivio, Inc. et al. CIV-517481 was filed in the same court. On November 2, 2012 defendants
removed the cases to the United States District Court for the Northern District of California where they were assigned
case numbers 12-cv-05637-CRB and 12-cv-05636-CW. A similar complaint was filed in the United States District
Court for the Northern District of California on December 20, 2012 entitled Thomas v. Envivio, Inc., et al. C
12-06464. The Company is, at this time, unable to assess whether any loss or adverse effect on its financial condition
is probable or remote or to estimate the range of potential loss, if any.

The Company is subject to claims and assessments from time to time in the ordinary course of business. The
Company is not currently a party to any other litigation matters that, individually or in the aggregate, are expected to
have a material adverse effect on the Company�s business, financial condition or results of operations.

9
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Indemnification

The Company may in the ordinary course of business agree to defend and indemnify some customers against legal
claims that the Company�s products infringe on certain U.S. patents or copyrights. Certain of the Company�s
employment agreements or arrangements with members of the board of directors also include indemnification
provisions. The terms of such obligations may vary. To date, the Company has not been required to make any
payments resulting from such infringement or director indemnifications and no amounts have been accrued for such
matters.

6. Stockholders� Equity

Common Stock

Shares of common stock authorized, issued and outstanding, as of July 31, 2013 and January 31, 2013 consist of
the following:

July 31, 2013 January 31, 2013

Authorized
Issued and

Outstanding Authorized
Issued and

Outstanding
Common stock 100,000,000 27,114,029 100,000,000 26,941,676

Shares of common stock reserved for issuance on an as-if converted basis is as follows as of July 31, 2013 and
January 31, 2013:

July 31, 2013 January 31, 2013
Exercise and vesting of stock-based awards 3,502,766 3,395,102
Available for option grants 1,350,735 553,085
Exercise of common stock warrants 36,000 36,000

4,889,501 3,984,187

Convertible Preferred Stock Warrants

Immediately prior to the closing of the IPO on April 30, 2012, an outstanding warrant to purchase 36,000 shares of
convertible preferred stock was converted into a warrant to purchase 36,000 shares of common stock on a one-to-one
basis. Upon the conversion of the underlying convertible preferred stock, the Company remeasured the related warrant
liability to fair value with the remaining amounts being reclassified to additional paid-in capital.

7. Stock Option Plan

Stock Option Plans

The Company adopted its stock option plan in 2000 (the �2000 Plan�). Under the 2000 Plan, as amended, the Company
was able to grant options to purchase up to 1,181,689 shares of common stock to certain employees, directors and
consultants. Under the terms of the 2000 Plan, the Company may grant incentive stock options (�ISO�), nonstatutory
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stock options (�NSO�), common stock purchase agreements (�CSPA�) and stock purchase rights (�SPR�). Such awards are
exercisable at prices generally equal to the fair value of the Company�s common stock at the date of grant, as
determined by the board of directors. Awards granted under the 2000 Plan generally vest over four years with a
six-month cliff period and may be exercised for a period of up to ten years. Vested options generally expire 30 days
after termination of employment. In December 2010, the board of directors approved a decrease in the number of
shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the 2000 Plan to 644,366 shares. No shares were available for
future grant under the 2000 Plan as of January 31, 2013 and July 31, 2013, due to the adoption of the stock incentive
plan described below.

The Company adopted the 2010 stock incentive plan (the �2010 Plan�) in June 2010. The 2010 Plan provides that only
employees are eligible for the grant of ISOs and that employees, consultants and outside directors are eligible for the
grant of NSOs. The 2010 Plan also allows for the grant of SPRs and restricted stock units (�RSU�). Awards granted
under the 2010 Plan also generally vest over four years with a six-month cliff period and may be exercised for a
period of up to ten years. Vested options generally expire three months after termination of employment. No shares
were available for future grant under the 2010 Plan as of January 31, 2013 and July 31, 2013 due to the adoption of a
new stock incentive plan as more fully described below.

The Company adopted the 2012 stock incentive plan (the �2012 Plan�) in June 2011, as amended in April 2012. The
2012 Plan provides that only employees are eligible for the grant of ISOs and that employees, consultants and outside
directors are eligible for the grant of NSOs. The 2012 Plan also allows for the grant of SPRs, RSUs and other types of
equity awards. Awards granted under the 2012 Plan also generally vest over four years with a twelve-month cliff
period and may be exercised for a period of up to ten years.

10
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In general, the vesting of awards granted under the 2012 Plan accelerates as to 25% of the then remaining unvested
portion of the awards upon a change in control of the Company. Vested options generally expire three months after
termination of employment. Shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the 2012 Plan consist of 553,085
and 1,350,735 shares as of January 31, 2013 and July 31, 2013, respectively. In addition, up to 3,500,000 shares
subject to outstanding awards under the 2000 Plan or 2010 Plan that are subsequently forfeited or terminated for any
reason before being exercised will be made available for issuance under the 2012 Plan. The number of shares that
have been authorized for issuance under the 2012 Plan will be automatically increased on the first day of each fiscal
year beginning in fiscal 2014 and ending in fiscal 2023, in an amount equal to the least of (i) 2,000,000 shares, (ii) 4%
of the outstanding shares of the Company�s common stock on the last day of the immediately preceding fiscal year and
(iii) another amount determined by the Company�s board of directors.

At the beginning of fiscal 2014, the board of directors ratified an increase in the number of shares authorized for
issuance under the 2012 Plan based on 4% of the outstanding shares of the Company�s common stock on the last day
of fiscal year 2013, or 1,077,667 shares. These shares will be registered under the Security Act of 1933 Securities and
Exchange Commission Form S-8 filed in conjunction with this Form 10-Q.

The following table summarizes the stock-based award activity for the 2000 Plan, 2010 Plan and the 2012 Plan during
the six months ended July 31, 2013:

Shares
Available
For Grant

Stock
Options

and
SPRs

Outstanding

Weighted-
Average
Exercise

Price

Average
Remaining

Contractual Life
(in years)

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value
(in thousands)

January 31, 2013 553,085 3,133,026 1.46 7.6 $ 2,782
Additional options authorized 1,077,667 �  �  
Options granted (268,875) 268,875 1.95
RSUs granted (121,950) �  
Options expired and forfeited 105,308 (105,308) 4.24
RSUs expired 5,500 �  �  
Exercised �  (153,853) 0.30

July 31, 2013 1,350,735 3,142,740 1.46 7.7 $ 4,862

Vested and expected to vest- July 31,
2013 3,113,235 1.46 7.7 $ 4,838

Vested- July 31, 2013 1,657,350 1.12 6.9 $ 3,220

Stock Purchase Rights and Common Stock Purchase Agreements

The Company grants SPRs to its French employees and in limited past instances, CSPAs to service providers in the
U.S. The SPRs and CSPAs provide the holder with a note equal to the aggregate exercise price of the related options,
therefore, allowing the holder to legally exercise the related options at the time of issuance in consideration of the
notes. Generally, the SPRs and CSPAs are subject to a vesting period of four years with the Company retaining the
right to repurchase unvested shares at the aggregate exercise price of the underlying options. In the event that a
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holder�s status as an employee ceases service for any reason, the notes and the related options are cancelled. As of
July 31, 2013 and January 31, 2013, 392,479 shares were subject to repurchase under the provisions of the SPRs and
97,464 shares were subject to repurchase under the provisions of the CSPAs.

The notes receivable issued to employees in conjunction with the SPRs and CSPAs are secured by the underlying
shares and carry interest rates ranging from 2.1% to 5.9%. While the note terms indicate that they are full recourse, the
Company has not pursued recourse in instances when a note receivable balance exceeds the fair value of the shares at
the date of repurchase, and accordingly, the exercises of the SPRs and CSPAs has been considered to be
non-substantive. Notes receivable relating to the SPRs and CSPAs are not recorded on the consolidated balance sheet
due to the non-substantive exercise consideration. Accordingly, the SPRs and CSPAs have been accounted for as
stock options and are included within the outstanding stock options as of each year end.

Restricted Stock Units

The Company grants RSUs or share-based awards to employees, executives and directors of the Company. As of
July 31, 2013 the Company has 360,026 RSUs outstanding.

Of the total RSUs outstanding, 229,076 are subject to vesting in accordance with specified milestones related to the
Company�s stock price performance following their initial public offering and, in some cases, are subject to
acceleration under certain circumstances, including a change in control. The Company uses a modified binary option
pricing model (European, call option) to establish the expected value of these RSUs.

11
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During the three and six months ended July 31, 2013, the Company recorded $49,000 and $106,000, respectively, of
stock-based compensation related to RSUs with market and performance vesting. During the three and six months
ended July 31, 2013, the Company recorded $36,000 and $49,000, respectively, of stock-based compensation related
to RSUs without market and performance vesting. A summary of the Company�s RSU activity for the six months
ended July 31, 2013 is presented below:

RSUs
Outstanding

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
Fair

Value
January 31, 2013 262,076 $ 8.08
Granted 121,950 2.46
Released (18,500) 8.74
Cancelled and forfeited (5,500) 8.84

July 31, 2013 360,026 $ 6.13

Stock-based Compensation

Total stock-based compensation expense during the three and six months ended July 31, 2013 and 2012 are
recognized in the consolidated statements of operations as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended July 31,Six Months Ended July 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012

Cost of revenue $ 1 $ 2 $ 2 $ 3
Research and development 29 40 53 79
Sales and marketing 87 170 177 280
General and administrative 432 541 836 1,081

Total stock-based compensation $ 549 $ 753 $ 1,068 $ 1,443

The weighted average assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the Company�s employee stock options at the
grant dates during the three and six months ended July 31, 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

Three Months Ended July 31, Six Months Ended July 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012

Expected term (in years) 6.25 6.25 6.25 6.25
Volatility 57% 57% 57% 57% 
Risk-free interest rate 1.23% 1.24% 1.22% 1.34% 
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Expected dividend 0% 0% 0% 0% 
As of July 31, 2013, total compensation cost not yet recognized for unvested awards was $3.2 million, which is
expected to be recognized over the following 1.3 years based on the weighted average vesting term.

8. Net Loss per Share Attributable to Common Stockholders

The following table sets forth the computation of the Company�s basic and diluted net loss per share attributable to
common stockholders during the three months and six months ended July 31, 2013 and 2012 (in thousands, except for
share and per share amounts):

Three Months ended July 31, Six Months ended July 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012

Net loss attributable to common
stockholders $ (2,479) $ (4,278) $ (7,218) $ (6,515) 
Shares used in computing net loss
per share attributable to common
stockholders, basic and diluted 27,109,942 26,913,125 27,086,507 20,192,392

Net loss per share attributable to
common stockholders, basic and
diluted $ (0.09) $ (0.16) $ (0.27) $ (0.32) 
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The following outstanding shares of common stock equivalents were excluded from the computation of diluted net
loss per share attributable to common stockholders for the periods ended July 31, 2012 and 2013 because including
them would have been antidilutive:

The Period Ended
July 31,

2013 2012
Stock options to purchase common stock 3,142,740 2,162,279
Shares purchased with notes (SPRs and CSPAs) 489,943 489,943
Common stock warrants 36,000 36,000
Restricted stock units 360,026 335,018

9. Income Taxes

We are subject to taxation in the U.S. and various state and foreign jurisdictions. We record liabilities for income tax
contingencies based on our best estimate of the underlying exposures. We are open for audit by the U.S. Internal
Revenue Service and state tax jurisdictions for all tax years since inception. With the exception of the 2010 tax year,
we remain open for audit by the French tax authorities from the year 2008 to current. Most other foreign jurisdictions
have statute of limitations that range from three to six years. We are not currently under examination by income tax
authorities in federal, state or foreign jurisdictions.

Our effective tax rate is a blended rate resulting from the composition of taxable income in the various global
jurisdictions in which we conduct business. We record a full valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets in the
jurisdictions where there is insufficient certainty surrounding the realization of deferred tax assets through future
taxable income.

For the three and six months ended July 31, 2013, we recorded an income tax provision of $157,000 and $46,000,
respectively. For the three and six months ended July 31, 2012, we recorded an income tax provision of $69,000 and
$175,000, respectively. The 2012 income tax provision was comprised of foreign taxes as well as various state and
local income taxes. The income tax provision for 2013 is primarily the result of various foreign and state and local
income taxes, partially offset by the release during the first quarter of fiscal 2014 of a $202,000 reserve for an
uncertain tax position related to our France entity due to the lapse in statute of limitations for the tax year 2010.

In compliance with applicable guidance for accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, we had gross unrecognized tax
benefits, which included provisions for estimated interest and penalties, of approximately $1,250,000 as of July 31,
2013, and approximately $1,505,000 as of July 31, 2012. If all of July 31, 2013, unrecognized tax benefits were
recognized, $920,000 would impact the provision for income taxes, with the remainder resulting in adjustments to
other tax accounts, primarily deferred taxes. The Company believes that it is reasonably possible that approximately
$218,000 of its currently other remaining unrecognized tax benefits may be recognized within the 12 months
beginning July 31, 2013, as a result of a lapse of the statute of limitations.

We recognize interest and possible penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense.

10. Segment Information

The Company�s solutions enable customers to deliver video services over broadcast, cable, internet, mobile and
satellite networks. Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise that engage in business activities
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for which separate financial information is available and evaluated by the chief operating decision maker in deciding
how to allocate resources and assessing performance. The Company�s chief operating decision maker is its chief
executive officer. The chief executive officer reviews financial information presented on a consolidated basis for
purposes of allocating resources and evaluating financial performance. The Company has one business activity and
there are no segment managers who are held accountable for operations, operating results beyond revenue goals or
gross margins, or plans for levels or components below the consolidated unit level. Accordingly, the Company has a
single reporting segment.
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The Company�s revenue by geographic region, based on the location at which each sale originates, is summarized as
follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended July 31,Six Months Ended July 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012

Americas $ 6,249 $ 3,517 $ 8,849 $ 5,952
Asia Pacific 1,581 2,709 3,492 6,195
EMEA 3,718 4,538 6,669 12,032

Total $ 11,548 $ 10,764 $ 19,010 $ 24,179

Included within the Americas total in the above table is revenue from sales originating in the U.S. of $5.8 million and
$8.2 million during the three and six months ended July 31, 2013, respectively, and of $1.6 million and $3.7 million
during the three and six months ended July 31, 2012, respectively.

The Company�s property and equipment, net, by geographic region is summarized as follows (in thousands):

July 31, 2013 January 31, 2013
Americas $ 1,775 $ 2,229
Asia Pacific 3 4
EMEA 2,374 2,770

Total $ 4,152 $ 5,003

Customers representing 10% or greater of total revenue for the periods presented were as follows (in percentages):

Three Months Ended July 31, Six Months Ended July 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012

Frontline Systems Australia * 10% * *
Alcatel Lucent * 12% * *
Ikon Interaktif * 10% * *
Huawei Technologies * * * 12% 
Comcast Cable 30% * 19% *
Time Warner Cable 19% * 12% *
British Sky Broadcasting 13% * * *

* Less than 10%
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q. This discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual
results could differ materially from those discussed below. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences
include, but are not limited to, those identified below and elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, including
those discussed in �Risk Factors.�

Overview

We are a leading provider of software-based video processing and distribution solutions that enable the delivery of
high-quality video to consumers. Based on our unique video compression and advanced IP video networking
technologies, our solutions are designed to enable service providers and content providers to offer high-quality video
anytime, anywhere, across a broad array of video formats, networks, consumer devices and operating systems. Our
software-based solutions run on industry-standard hardware, and our products include encoders, transcoders and
network media processors, all controlled through our network management system.

We were founded in January 2000 by a small group of talented software and electrical engineers from France
Telecom. Since our inception, we have been focused on developing a software-based architecture for processing and
distributing video abroad variety of devices at the highest video quality possible. At that time, our software-based
approach was a novel strategy for addressing video processing and distribution as most existing technologies
processed and distributed video by designing hardware products for the transfer of video over a fixed format to
standard TVs. These hardware products generally focused on improving quality of video, but did not attempt to
address multiple formats or the challenges created by multiple devices and different networks. Because of our
founding team�s software expertise and the challenge of delivering video to mobile devices, which utilizes multiple
formats and has multiple delivery requirements, our solution was designed from the beginning to provide our
customers the flexibility to adapt quickly and cost-effectively to the rapidly changing landscape of technologies,
formats and capabilities of mobile devices.

While attempting to address the challenges of processing and distributing video across a rapidly changing landscape
of formats, networks, devices and operating systems, we have maintained our focus on improving the quality of the
video delivered by our solution. We originally focused on developing technologies supported by the MPEG-4
standard, which is an industry standard for a group of audio and video coding formats and related technology that is
capable of providing the highest quality video in the marketplace today. When we initially developed this technology,
the standard in the marketplace was MPEG-2, a previous similar standard available since 1992. Throughout our
history, we believe we have made valuable contributions to the ISO/IEC Moving Picture Experts Group, or MPEG,
including having several of our employees sit on the governing standards body and by contributing several
technologies to the video community that fostered the development of MPEG-4 as an industry standard. We have
since expanded our codecs to support MPEG-2 and the emerging HEVC (H.265) standard, as well as adaptive formats
including MPEG-DASH. We believe these contributions demonstrate our innovation and thought leadership in the
video processing and distribution industry.

Our software-based approach to developing a flexible solution while delivering high-quality video has led to the
development of several key products throughout our history. In 2001, we completed our first product based on the
MPEG-4 standard. In 2002, we developed our first MPEG-4 webcasting system, which allowed us to address the
enterprise market. In 2003, we deployed a news video contribution system in MPEG-4, which allowed us to address
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the need to transmit low bitrate video for real-time news gathering. In 2004, our first H.264 live transmission over
satellite was successful, which allowed us to address the needs of satellite providers looking to deliver low bitrate
video over satellite. We focused on our expansion into Asia in 2005 by providing the IPTV system for a service
provider in China and a mobile digital TV service provider in Japan. In 2007, we developed our first all IP-based
headend, an innovative and cost-reducing design for consumer video distribution, and our first AVS encoder, which
allowed us to address the expanding video services market in China. In 2008, we introduced the world�s first
three-screen convergence encoder, which enabled operators to deliver video to three screens (mobile, PC and TV)
from a single product. In 2010, we introduced 3D TV support with multi-video encoding standard on our C4 encoder,
as well as support for the expanding set of mobile and web streaming formats. In November 2010, we launched a new
class of product, the Halo network media processor which enables the optimization of networks for distribution of
multi-screen, multi-format video. In December 2011, we released Muse, our multi-screen software designed for live or
file-based video transcoding and distribution to any device. In September 2012, we introduced the 4Caster G4
encoding appliance for the Muse software-based encoder family which offers more density compared to the previous
platform, with the potential for further density improvements. In April 2013, we introduced the Halo� Experience
Server, an innovative new multi-screen application server that allows operators to further personalize the user
experience based on individual viewer requests.
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As a result of our close relationship with France Telecom, we initially focused on the telecommunications market both
for broadband IPTV delivery and delivery of video to mobile devices. However, as consumer demands have evolved
over time, our solution has become attractive to a larger set of customers. In reaction to telecommunications
companies providing video content and services to multiple devices with IPTV as well as mobile video services,
traditional cable TV service providers have launched innovative services that deliver video content to PCs and mobile
devices. Most recently over-the-top, or OTT, providers have also gained market share by offering innovative and
cost-effective video services to mobile devices, PCs and even TVs for consumers through the open Internet. This set
of competing service offerings, when combined with increased consumer demand for video on multiple screens, led us
to design a single solution that addresses the needs of a broader customer base of service providers and content
providers. For example, one of our first major end-customers purchased our IPTV solution in 2008 to enable delivery
of video to TVs over broadband networks. This same customer began providing OTT services in 2009, and purchased
our OTT solution to enable its OTT services. Finally, in 2010, this customer began to offer mobile video content and
purchased our solution to address this video delivery mode as well.

We target several different types of video service providers and content providers, including telecommunications
companies and cable, satellite and OTT providers. These target customers have unique characteristics, including their
infrastructure, target consumer demands, scale, delivery models and business models. We focus on providing video
delivery solutions to these customers that allow them to better target their growth markets, such as mobile TV,
Pay-TV, IPTV and OTT. To date, our solution has been deployed by over 300 end-customers worldwide in over 50
different countries.

We outsource the manufacturing of our products to a single manufacturer in California. In some cases, we rely on our
manufacturer to procure the components for our equipment. For certain components, we contract directly with the
supplier. We ship our solutions directly from our manufacturer.

Our products and support services are sold worldwide, both direct and through systems integrators, which serve as our
channel partners. Our channel partners assist us with the sales process, systems integration, deployment and support.
We employ a sales force that is responsible for managing our relationships with our channel partners within each
geographic territory in which we market and sell our products. We also sell our products and support services directly
to end-customers. In many cases, even when we sell our products through channel partners, we market and work
directly with the end-customer to promote our products.

Since inception, we have expended significant resources on our research and development operations. Our research
and development activities are exclusively conducted in the metropolitan area of Rennes, France, which we believe
provides us access to highly qualified engineers on a cost-effective basis located in what has traditionally been viewed
as a top broadcast center of Europe.

Factors Affecting Our Results of Operations

The following are key factors that impact our results of operations:

Consumer Demand and Infrastructure Capacity

Most of our products are installed into networks operated by telecommunications, cable, satellite and OTT providers
to deliver high-quality video to a consumer. The demand for our products is significantly impacted by the end
consumer of video services and the demands these end consumers place on service providers and content providers to
deliver high-quality video across disparate networks and to multiple devices. As this consumer demand increases,
service providers respond by expanding or enhancing their infrastructure and equipment to address these needs. As the
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infrastructure capacity increases, high-quality video can be made available to more consumers over broadband and
wireless IP networks, which we believe will also increase the number of global broadband users.

Our solution is designed to address the infrastructure challenge of delivering massive amounts of content over
different types of networks to consumers who are increasingly viewing video on a growing variety of devices, such as
tablets, smartphones, laptops, and Internet-enabled TVs and media players. As consumer expectations of video
delivery increase, the demand from telecommunications, cable, satellite and OTT providers for the type of video
delivery solutions that we provide increases. Accordingly, we measure consumer demand for video services by
monitoring a collection of key market metrics, including the introduction of new mobile devices, such as tablets, new
access mediums that are emerging in the digital home, such as Internet-enabled TVs and new video applications, and
enhanced product offerings, such as bundling on-demand video services with other traditional service offerings.

We believe the combination of increased availability of video-enabled connected devices combined with the evolution
of the network infrastructure will, in turn, drive service providers and content providers to seek flexible solutions to
deliver video to consumers that can continue to adapt to changing formats, networks and devices while maintaining
the highest possible video quality.
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Competitive Environment and Geographic Mix

The market for our products is competitive and our gross margin is impacted by the level of competition we face and
the geographic mix of product sales worldwide. We face significant competition in selling our solution. In any given
sales opportunity, the level of competition we face could impact our gross margin. In addition, our gross margin may
be impacted by the location of our target customer as different geographic regions have different pricing environments
based on customer expectation, business models and our customers� revenue opportunity from the services we enable.
For example, we typically experience lower average sales prices in the Asia-Pacific region and higher average sales
prices in North America. We anticipate that our geographic mix will continue to fluctuate in the future from quarter to
quarter, which could impact our future gross margin.

The geographic mix of our revenues during the three months ended July 31, 2013 compared to the same prior year
period reflects improvement in spending by our service provider customers in North America and continued weakness
in the EMEA and Asia Pacific regions which we attribute to the current global economic environment. We anticipate
that our revenues will continue to be impacted by the economic environment, both globally and regionally, and our
ability to continually improve our sales execution, particularly in North America.

Average Sales Prices

We may experience a decline in average sales prices as new competitive products are introduced into the marketplace.
Changes in average sales prices cannot always be predicted with certainty. The average sales prices of our products
may decline faster than we expect. Competitors may also anticipate our entry into a market and begin to lower their
sales prices even before we introduce our product. Under certain circumstances, lower prices may increase our sales
volume and thus our revenue, but a lower average sales price typically reduces our gross margin percentage. We
expect to continue to face price pressure on our products as average sales prices may decline over time, and there is no
assurance that our gross margins will not decline in the future. As we continue to innovate our software-based
solution, we may be able to offset a decline in the average sales prices of the prior generation of our solutions.

Evolution of Hardware Platform

We utilize industry-standard hardware, and therefore, are able to leverage the evolutionary increase in computing
power in each new generation of hardware. In the past, this has allowed us to increase the number of video streams at
a given resolution with each new hardware platform, and we expect this to continue. This increase in performance
may offset any potential decline in the average sales prices of the prior generation of our solutions.

Components of Revenue, Cost of Revenue and Operating Expenses

Revenue

Our revenue is derived primarily from the sale of our video processing and distribution solutions, which consists of
both hardware and software. Our proprietary software is an essential component in the products we sell and provides a
key differentiator between us and our competitors. Our hardware generally consists of industry-standard components,
which are readily available from third-party providers. To a lesser extent, we derive revenue from professional
services as well as support and maintenance of our products. Our maintenance contracts may include future software
upgrades depending on the level of maintenance purchased. Our support contracts typically include telephone and
email access to technical support personnel. When we sell an enhanced support offering, we provide our customers
with rights to software upgrades as well as maintenance releases and patches released during the term of the support
period.
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Cost of Revenue

Our cost of revenue consists primarily of third-party manufacturing costs and component costs. Our cost of revenue
also includes shipping costs, third-party logistics costs, personnel costs associated with our technical support and
professional services teams and write-offs for excess and obsolete inventory. To a lesser extent, our cost of revenue
includes personnel costs associated with our operations and logistics.

Operating Expenses

Our operating expenses consist of research and development, sales and marketing, and general and administrative
expenses. The largest component of our operating expenses is personnel costs. Personnel costs consist of salaries and
benefits for our employees. We expect to manage our operating expenses in both the near and long term to ensure that
our expenses are in-line with our operating plan. However, our operating expenses may fluctuate as a percentage of
revenue.
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Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses primarily consist of personnel, engineering, testing and compliance, facilities and
professional services costs. We expense research and development costs as incurred. Research and development
expenses are presented net of French government research tax credits. We continue to closely manage our existing
research and development resources as well as strategically invest in additional resources to add more functionality to
our existing products and develop new products that support our overall company strategy.

Sales and Marketing Expenses

Sales and marketing expenses primarily consist of personnel costs, sales commissions, travel costs, costs for
marketing programs and facilities costs. We continue to closely monitor sales and marketing expenses and augment
our sales force in key areas to further expand our strategic relationships with current and future channel partners and
direct customers.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses primarily consist of personnel, professional services and facilities costs related to
our executive, finance, human resource and information technology functions. Professional services costs consist of
outside legal, accounting and information technology consulting costs.

Interest Income (Expense), net

Interest income (expense), net, consists primarily of interest expense related to our line of credit and interest income
from our cash, cash equivalent and short term investment balances.

Other Income (Expense), net

Other income (expense), net, consists primarily of charges due to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates on receivables
and payables denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. The foreign currency transaction gains and losses
relate to transactions that are in a different currency than the respective functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

Critical Accounting Policies, Judgments and Estimates

There have been no material changes to our critical accounting policies, judgments and estimates during the six
months ended July 31, 2013 from those disclosed in our 2013 Form 10-K.
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Three and Six Months Ended July 31, 2013 Compared to the Three and Six Months Ended July 31, 2012

The following table presents our historical operating results and the changes in these results in dollars (in thousands)
and as a percentage for the periods presented:

Three Months Ended July 31,$ Change% ChangeSix Months Ended July 31,$ Change% Change
2013 2012 2013 2012

Revenue:
Product $ 9,381 $ 8,893 488 5% $ 15,050 $ 20,545 (5,495) -27% 
Professional services
and support 2,167 1,871 296 16% 3,960 3,634 326 9% 

Total revenue 11,548 10,764 784 7% 19,010 24,179 (5,169) -21% 

Cost of revenue:
Product 3,084 3,765 (681) -18% 5,360 8,527 (3,167) -37% 
Professional services
and support 560 358 202 56% 1,025 732 293 40% 

Total cost of revenue 3,644 4,123 (479) -12% 6,385 9,259 (2,874) -31% 

Gross profit 7,904 6,641 1,263 19% 12,625 14,920 (2,295) -15% 

Gross profit % 68% 62% 6% 66% 62% 4% 
Operating expenses:
Research and
development 2,439 2,034 405 20% 4,406 4,028 378 9% 
Sales and marketing 4,879 5,628 (749) -13% 9,942 11,370 (1,428) -13% 
General and
administrative 2,942 3,050 (108) -4% 5,495 5,730 (235) -4% 

Total operating
expenses 10,260 10,712 (452) -4% 19,843 21,128 (1,285) -6% 

Loss from operations (2,356) (4,071) 1,715 -42% (7,218) (6,208) (1,010) 16% 
Interest income, net 13 24 (11) -46% 32 15 17 113% 
Other income
(expense), net 21 (162) 183 -113% 14 (147) 161 -110% 

Loss before provision
for income taxes (2,323) (4,209) 1,886 -45% (7,172) (6,340) (832) 13% 
Income tax provision 157 69 88 128% 46 175 (129) -74% 

Net loss (2,479) (4,278) 1,798 -42% (7,218) (6,515) (703) 11% 

Revenue
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Our total revenue increased by $0.8 million, or 7%, to $11.5 million during the three months ended July 31, 2013 from
$10.8 million during the three months ended July 31, 2012. Product revenue increased $0.5 million primarily due to
increased sales in North America and improvement in overall sales execution, slightly offset by decreases in the
EMEA and Asia Pacific regions which we attribute to the current global economic environment. Our professional
services and support revenue increased primarily due to stronger sales of professional services and support renewals
compared to the same prior year period as well as completion of more customer projects.

Our total revenue decreased by $5.2 million, or 21%, to $19.0 million during the six months ended July 31, 2013 from
$24.2 million during the six months ended July 31, 2012, primarily due to a decrease of $5.5 million in product
revenue, slightly offset by an increase of $0.3 million in professional services and support revenue. The decrease in
product revenue was primarily due to decreased consumer demand during the six months ended July 31, 2013 for
multi-screen video services from both new and existing customers, particularly in the EMEA region, resulting in
lower overall sales volume of our IP video processing and distribution solution. Despite the decrease in product
revenue, our professional services and support revenue increased by $0.3 million, or 9%, mainly due to stronger sales
of professional services and support renewals compared to the same prior year period as well as completion of more
customer projects.

Cost of Revenue and Gross Profit

Our total cost of revenue decreased by $0.5 million, or 12%, to $3.6 million during the three months ended July 31,
2013 from $4.1 million during the three months ended July 31, 2012, primarily due to a relative increase in sales of
our higher margin software-only products during the three months ended July 31, 2013. Accordingly, our total gross
profit increased by $1.3 million, or 19%, to $7.9 million during the three months ended July 31, 2013 from $6.6
million during the three months ended July 31, 2012. Cost of revenue for professional services and support increased
by $0.2 million as we increased the number of professional services employees and consultants.
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Our total cost of revenue decreased by $2.9 million, or 31%, to $6.4 million during the six months ended July 31,
2013 from $9.3 million during the six months ended July 31, 2012, primarily due to a 21% decline in revenue during
the six months ended July 31, 2013. Our total gross profit decreased by $2.3 million, or 15%, to $12.6 million during
the six months ended July 31, 2013 from $14.9 million during the six months ended July 31, 2012 primarily due to
lower revenue during the six months ended July 31, 2013 which was driven by decreased consumer demand for
multi-screen video services from both new and existing customers, particularly in the EMEA region. Cost of revenue
for professional services and support increased by $0.3 million as headcount and consultants increased within our
professional services organization.

Therefore, our gross margin percentage increased by 6% to 68% during the three months ended July 31, 2013 from
62% during the three months ended July 31, 2012. Our gross margin percentage increased by 4% to 66% during the
six months ended July 31, 2013 from 62% during the six months ended July 31, 2012.

Operating Expenses

Our operating expenses decreased by $0.5 million, or 4%, to $10.3 million during the three months ended July 31,
2013 from $10.7 million during the three months ended July 31, 2012, while operating expenses decreased by
$1.3 million, or 6%, to $19.8 million during the six months ended July 31, 2013 from $21.1 million during the six
months ended July 31, 2012.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses increased by $0.4 million, or 20%, to $2.4 million during the three months ended
July 31, 2013 from $2.0 million during the three months ended July 31, 2012, primarily due to an increase of $0.3
million relating to salaries and related employee costs and an increase of $0.1 million in office lease expense related to
our new research and development facilities in Rennes, France. Although we are devoting substantial resources to the
development of additional functionality for our existing products and the development of new products, we are
focusing on only deploying resources to activities that align with our overall corporate strategy. As we deploy such
resources, we expect research and development expenses for the year ended January 31, 2014 to increase compared to
the year ended January 31, 2013.

Research and development expenses increased by $0.4 million, or 9%, to $4.4 million during the six months ended
July 31, 2013 from $4.0 million during the six months ended July 31, 2012, primarily due to an increase of $0.5
million relating to salaries and related employee costs and an increase of $0.1 million office lease expense related to
our new research and development facilities in Rennes, France. This increase was partially offset by a decrease of $0.2
million resulting from a decline in our use of consultants.

Sales and Marketing Expenses

Sales and marketing expenses decreased by $0.7 million, or 13%, to $4.9 million during the three months ended
July 31, 2013 from $5.6 million during the three months ended July 31, 2012, primarily due to a decrease of $0.6
million relating to decreased headcount and a decline in our use of consultants as a result of a strategic reorganization
of our sales force and a $0.3 million decrease in corporate marketing expenses. We expect sales and marketing
expenses for the year ended January 31, 2014 to remain even compared to the year ended January 31, 2013 as we
continue to monitor our sales and marketing expenses to ensure they align with our overall corporate strategy.

Sales and marketing expenses decreased by $1.4 million, or 13%, to $9.9 million during the six months ended July 31,
2013 from $11.3 million during the six months ended July 31, 2012, primarily due to a decrease of $1.4 million
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relating to decreased headcount and a decline in our use of consultants as a result of a strategic reorganization of our
sales force and a $0.3 million decrease in corporate marketing expenses.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses decreased by $0.1 million, or 4%, to $2.9 million during the three months ended
July 31, 2013 from $3.0 million during the three months ended July 31, 2012, primarily due to decreases of $0.2
million in bad debt expense and $0.3 million in accounting related expenses resulting from improvements in our
internal finance and accounting operations. The overall decrease was partially offset by an increase of $0.3 million in
legal expenses and other professional fees. We expect a decrease in general and administrative expenses for the year
ended January 31, 2014 compared to the year ended January 31, 2013 as we continue to monitor our general and
administrative expenses to ensure they align with our overall corporate strategy.

General and administrative expenses decreased by $0.2 million, or 4%, to $5.5 million during the six months ended
July 31, 2013 from $5.7 million during the six months ended July 31, 2012, due to a decrease of $0.2 million in bad
debt expense and $0.4 million in accounting related expenses resulting from improvements in our internal finance and
accounting operations. The overall decrease was partially offset by an increase of $0.4 million in legal expenses and
other professional fees.
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Interest Income, net

Interest income net, decreased by $11,000, or 46%, from $24,000 during the three months ended July 31, 2012 to
$13,000 during the three months ended July 31, 2013. The decrease was primarily due to lower interest income
generated from our short-term investment account during the three months ended July 31, 2013 as there was a
significant reduction in short-term investments between the two periods as maturities of corporate bonds were not
reinvested.

Interest income net, increased by $17,000, or 113%, from $15,000 during the six months ended July 31, 2012 to
$32,000 during the six months ended July 31, 2013. The increase was primarily due to less interest expense of
$53,000 as we had no debt during the six months ended July 31, 2013. This increase was partially offset by less
interest income of $36,000 during the six months ended July 31, 2013.

Other Income (Expense), net

Other income (expense), net, changed by $183,000, or 113%, from expense of $162,000 during the three months
ended July 31, 2012 to income of $21,000 during the three months ended July 31, 2013. This change was primarily
due to a foreign currency translation gain of $21,000 during the three months ended July 31, 2013 compared to a
foreign currency translation loss of $162,000 during the three months ended July 31, 2012.

Other income (expense), net, changed by $161,000, or 110%, from expense of $147,000 during the six months ended
July 31, 2012 to income of $14,000 during the six months ended July 31, 2013. This change was primarily due to a
foreign currency translation gain of $14,000 during the six months ended July 31, 2013 compared to a foreign
currency translation loss of $147,000 during the six months ended July 31, 2012.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

On April 24, 2012, we sold 6,500,000 shares of common stock at a price to the public of $9.00 per share in an initial
public offering, or IPO. The shares began trading on the NASDAQ Global Market on April 25, 2012. The $54.4
million in proceeds from the IPO, net of underwriters� discounts and commissions, but before deducting
offering-related expenses payable by us of $5.8 million, were received on April 30, 2012, which was the closing date
of the IPO. Immediately prior to the closing of the offering, all outstanding shares of convertible preferred stock
converted into common stock on a one-for-one basis.

Prior to the IPO, we funded our operations primarily with proceeds from issuances of convertible preferred stock and
borrowings under our credit facilities. We raised an aggregate of $95.1 million, net of issuance cost, from the sale of
our convertible preferred stock, including the conversion of convertible promissory notes. We also funded purchases
of equipment and other general corporate services with proceeds from our borrowings under our credit facilities. We
believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents as of July 31, 2013 will be sufficient to fund our operations and
capital expenditures for at least the next 12 months. However, management may in the future elect to finance
operations by utilizing our credit facilities or selling equity securities. If additional funding is required, there can be no
assurance that additional funds will be available to us on acceptable terms on a timely basis, if at all, or that we will
generate sufficient cash from operations to adequately fund our operating needs or sustain profitability. If we are
unable to raise additional capital or generate sufficient cash from operations to adequately fund our operations, we
will need to curtail planned activities to reduce costs. Doing so will likely have an unfavorable effect on our ability to
execute on our business plan.

Cash Requirements
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As of July 31, 2013, our cash, cash equivalents and short term investments totaled $53.0 million. We had not drawn
on our revolving credit facility as July 31, 2013 and the availability under this facility was $10.0 million subject to a
borrowing base.

Financial Condition (Sources and Uses of Cash)

Our cash and cash equivalents consisted of cash deposits and money market funds with a total amount of $52.6
million as of July 31, 2013.
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Our cash flows during the six months ended July 31, 2013 and 2012 are summarized as follows:

Six Months Ended July 31,
2013 2012

(in thousands)
Net cash used in operating activities $ (1,081) $ (12,572) 
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 2,484 (18,466) 
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (85) 50,047

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Our primary uses of cash from operating activities have been for personnel costs, purchases of inventory and costs
related to our facilities. In the past, we experienced negative cash flows from operating activities as we expanded our
business and generated operating losses. Our cash flows from operating activities will continue to be affected
principally by our working capital requirements and the extent to which we spend on personnel, research and
development and sales and marketing activities as our business requires.

Cash used in operating activities of $1.1 million during the six months ended July 31, 2013 reflected a net loss of $7.2
million, a decrease in net operating assets of $3.3 million and non-cash charges of $1.4 million for depreciation and
amortization and $1.1 million for stock-based compensation. The decrease in net operating assets was primarily due to
a decrease of $0.4 million in inventory, an increase of $1.9 million in accounts payable, accrued liabilities and accrued
compensation and an increase of $2.0 million in deferred revenue along with an increase of $0.7 million in deferred
inventory costs. The increase in operating cash relating to accounts payable, accrued liabilities and accrued
compensation primarily resulted from higher revenue and thus, more amounts due to our third-party contract
manufacturer as well as higher sales commission and variable compensation. Deferred revenue and related deferred
inventory costs increased during the six months ended July 31, 2013 primarily due to an increase in projects subject to
revenue deferral as well as more support contracts entered into during the current period.

Cash used in operating activities of $12.6 million during the six months ended July 31, 2012 reflected a net loss of
$6.5 million, a change in net operating assets of $8.9 million, non-cash charges of $1.2 million for depreciation and
amortization, $1.4 million for stock-based compensation and $0.3 million in bad debt expense. The change in net
operating assets and liabilities primarily consisted of a $5.4 million increase in accounts receivable and a $0.7 million
increase in prepaid expenses along with decreases of $1.1 million in deferred inventory costs, $1.0 million in accounts
payable and accrued liabilities and $2.9 million in deferred revenue. The increase in accounts receivable was primarily
the result of a higher concentration of sales in regions where customary payment terms are often longer such as Asia,
India and the Middle East. Deferred revenue and deferred inventory costs decreased during the six months ended
July 31, 2012 primarily due to the timing of revenue recognition as previously deferred transactions were recognized
during the six month ended July 31, 2012 and a majority of new revenue transactions during this period were subject
to the new revenue recognition rules adopted during our fiscal year 2012, and accordingly, were less likely to be
subject to full deferral.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

During the six months ended July 31, 2013, cash flows from investing activities consisted of net cash receipts of
$3.0 million from the sales and maturities of corporate bond investments in accordance with guidelines set forth in our
investment policy and capital expenditures amounting to $0.6 million primarily for the purchase of equipment.
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During the six months ended July 31, 2012, cash flows used in investing activities consisted of a $16.8 million
investment in commercial paper and corporate bonds in accordance with guidelines set forth in our investment policy
and capital expenditures amounting to $1.6 million primarily for the purchase of equipment. We did not make any
short-term investments until the three months ended July 31, 2012.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

During the six months ended July 31, 2013, cash used in financing activities was $85,000, as a result of the
repayments of French governmental repayable research grants of $133,000 offset by $48,000 in cash proceeds from
the exercise of stock options.

On April 24, 2012, we received aggregate proceeds of approximately $54.4 million from our IPO, net of underwriters�
discounts and commissions, but before deduction of offering expenses of $5.8 million. Immediately prior to the
closing of the IPO, all shares of our outstanding convertible preferred stock automatically converted into 6,988,120
shares of common stock, and the outstanding warrants to purchase 36,000 shares of convertible preferred stock at
$12.50 per share remained outstanding and were contractually adjusted immediately prior to the closing of the IPO to
purchase 36,000 shares of common stock at $12.50 per share.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of July 31, 2013, we did not have any relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as
entities often referred to as structured finance or special purpose entities, which would have been established for the
purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following summarizes our contractual obligations as of July 31, 2013:

Payments Due by Period
(in thousands)

Contractual Obligations:
Less Than 1

Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years
More Than

5 Years Total
Operating lease obligations $ 910 $ 1,524 $ 1,192 $ 1,837 $ 5,463
French Governmental research grant repayments 239 292 �  �  531
Uncertain tax positions 218 702 �  �  920

Total $ 1,367 $ 2,518 $ 1,192 $ 1,837 $ 6,914

We outsource the manufacturing, assembly and testing of our encoding products to FutureQuest Incorporated (�FQ�).
We generally do not use custom materials in our products and therefore, our obligation to FQ is limited to purchase
orders. To the extent that we cancel a purchase order, we are only liable to the extent that FQ cannot otherwise utilize
those components. To date, we have never been required to purchase any such components. Our outstanding purchase
orders with FQ are not material as of July 31, 2013.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk represents the risk of loss that may impact our financial position due to adverse changes in financial
market prices and rates. Our market risk exposure is primarily a result of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates and interest rates. We do not hold or issue financial instruments for trading purposes.

Foreign Currency Risk

Most of our sales are denominated in U.S. dollars, and therefore, our revenues are not currently subject to significant
foreign currency risk. Our operating expenses are denominated in the currencies of the countries in which our
operations are located, and may be subject to fluctuations due to changes in foreign currency exchange rates,
particularly changes in the Euro relative to the U.S. dollar. We have a large research and development facility in
France and pay our employees located in France in Euros. To date, we have not entered into any hedging contracts.
During the three months ended July 31, 2013, a 10% appreciation or depreciation in the value of the U.S. dollar
relative to the other currencies in which our expenses are denominated would have had an estimated impact of
approximately $1.0 million on our financial position and results of operations.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

Edgar Filing: ENVIVIO INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 41



We had cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments of $53.0 million as of July 31, 2013. Our cash and cash
equivalents are held primarily in cash deposits and money market funds, and our short-term investments are held
primarily in corporate bonds. We hold our cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments for working capital
purposes. Due to the short-term nature of these instruments, we believe that we do not have any material exposure to
changes in the fair value of our investment portfolio as a result of changes in interest rates. Declines in interest rates,
however, will reduce future interest income. During the three months ended July 31, 2013, a 10% appreciation or
depreciation in overall interest rates would not have had a material impact on our interest income.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, evaluated the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report.
The term �disclosure controls and procedures,� as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act,
means controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission rules and
forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to
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ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the
Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the company�s management, including its principal executive and
principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Based on the
evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of July 31, 2013, our chief executive officer and chief financial
officer concluded that, as of such date, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable
assurance level.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified in management�s evaluation pursuant
to Rules 13a-15(d) or 15d-15(d) of the Exchange Act during the three months ended July 31, 2013 that materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls and Procedures

In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and
procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired
control objectives. In addition, the design of disclosure controls and procedures must reflect the fact that there are
resource constraints and that management is required to apply judgment in evaluating the benefits of possible controls
and procedures relative to their costs.

PART II

OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On October 5, 2012 a complaint captioned Wiley v. Envivio, Inc., et al. CIV-517185 was filed in the Superior Court
of California, County of San Mateo, naming as defendants the Company, each of our directors, our chief executive
officer, our chief financial officer, and certain underwriters of our IPO. The lawsuit purports to be a class action on
behalf of purchasers of shares issued in the IPO and generally alleges that the registration statement for the IPO
contained materially false or misleading statements. The complaint purports to assert claims under the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, and seeks unspecified damages and other relief. On October 19, 2012 a similar complaint
captioned Toth v. Envivio, Inc. et al. CIV-517481 was filed in the same court. On November 2, 2012 defendants
removed the cases to the United States District Court for the Northern District of California where they were assigned
case numbers 12-cv-05637-CRB and 12-cv- 05636-CW. A similar complaint was filed in the United States District
Court for the Northern District of California on December 20, 2012 entitled Thomas v. Envivio, Inc., et al.
C 12-06464. We are, at this time, unable to assess whether any loss or adverse effect on our financial condition is
probable or remote or to estimate the range of potential loss, if any.

We are subject to claims and assessments from time to time in the ordinary course of business. We are not currently a
party to any other litigation matters that, individually or in the aggregate, are expected to have a material adverse
effect on the our business, financial condition or results of operations.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

If any of the following risks actually occurs, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be
harmed. In that case, the trading price of our common stock could decline and you might lose all or part of your
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investment in our common stock. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones we face. You
should also refer to the other information set forth in this Form 10-Q, including our consolidated financial statements
and the related notes. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently deem
immaterial may also impair our business operations.

We depend on the capital spending of telecommunications, cable and satellite service providers, as well as
broadcast, media and Internet content providers for a substantial majority of our revenue. Any material decrease
or delay in capital spending in these industries has in the past and could continue in the future to negatively impact
our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

A substantial majority of our historical revenue has been derived from sales to telecommunications, cable and satellite
service providers, as well as, more recently, the emerging broadcast, media and Internet content providers. We expect
that revenue from all of these markets will constitute a substantial majority of our revenue for the foreseeable future.
Because many of our customers in these markets purchase our products in connection with constructing and upgrading
their architecture and systems, demand for our products depends on the magnitude and timing of capital spending by
our customers. The capital spending of our target telecommunications,
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cable and satellite service provider customers has recently slowed and caused a significant decline in our business
levels and financial results. If this slowdown continues, our operating results and financial condition will continue to
be negatively impacted in a significant manner. We currently have limited visibility into the spending patterns of our
large target customers and cannot predict when these conditions will improve.

Our customers� capital spending patterns are dependent on a variety of factors, including:

� the impact of industry consolidation;

� overall demand for communications services and consumer acceptance of new video and data services;

� competitive pressures, including pricing pressures;

� access to financing;

� general economic conditions;

� annual capital spending budget cycles of each of the industries that our customers serve;

� federal, local and foreign government regulation of telecommunications and television broadcasting;

� evolving industry standards and network architectures; and

� discretionary consumer spending patterns.
In the past, specific factors contributing to reduced capital spending by our customers have included:

� delays in the evaluation of new services, standards and system architectures by many operators;

� emphasis by operators on generating revenue from existing customers, rather than from new customers
through new construction or network upgrades;

� a reduction in the amount of capital available to finance projects;
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� proposed and completed business combinations and divestitures by our customers and the length of
regulatory review thereof; and

� bankruptcies and financial restructuring of customers.
Further, we have a number of international customers to whom sales are denominated in U.S. dollars. The value of the
U.S. dollar fluctuates significantly against many foreign currencies, which includes the local currencies of many of
our international customers. If the U.S. dollar appreciates relative to the local currencies of our customers, then the
prices of our products correspondingly increase for such customers. Such an effect could adversely impact the sale of
our products to such customers and result in longer sales cycles, difficulties in collection of accounts receivable,
slower adoption of new technologies and increased price competition in the affected countries. Further, if the U.S.
dollar were to weaken against many major currencies, there can be no assurance that a weaker dollar would lead to
growth in capital spending.

As a result of these capital spending issues, we may not be able to maintain or increase our revenue in the future, and
our operating results, financial condition and cash flows could be materially and adversely affected.

We have incurred significant losses since inception and may continue to incur losses in the future.

We have incurred significant losses since our inception, including net losses of $2.5 million and $4.3 million during
the three months ended July 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and net losses of $7.2 million and $6.5 million during
the six months ended July 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. As of July 31, 2013, we had an accumulated deficit of
$103.0 million. These losses have resulted principally from lower sales compared to costs incurred in our research and
development programs and sales and marketing programs. We may incur operating losses for at least the foreseeable
future as a result of the expenses associated with the continued development and expansion of our business.
Additionally, now that we are a public company, our general and administrative expenses have begun to increase due
to the additional operational and reporting costs associated with being a public company. We may also increase our
research and development expenses. Our ability to attain profitability in the future will be affected by, among other
things, our ability to execute on our business strategy, the continued acceptance of our products, the timing and size of
customer orders, the average sales prices of our products, the costs of our products, and the extent to which we invest
in our sales and marketing, research and development, and general and administrative resources. If we are unable to
attain profitability, our business would be harmed and our stock price could decline.

25

Edgar Filing: ENVIVIO INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 46



Table of Contents

We rely on systems integrators, who serve as our channel partners, for a significant portion of our revenue, and
disruptions to, or our failure to develop and manage, our relationships with these channel partners and the
processes and procedures that support them could materially and adversely affect our business.

We generate a significant portion of our revenue through sales to channel partners, principally to assist us with the
integration of our software-based solution with other third-party products to provide a tailored solution for the
end-customer. Our aggregate revenue through sales to channel partners was $3.0 million and $8.2 million during the
three months ended July 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and $8.0 million and $18.0 million during the six months
ended July 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. We expect that these sales to channel partners will continue to generate a
significant percentage of our revenue in the future. Accordingly, our future success is highly dependent upon
establishing and maintaining successful relationships with a variety of channel partners.

We do not have long-term contracts or minimum purchase commitments with any of our channel partners, and our
contracts with these parties do not prohibit them from purchasing or offering products or services that compete with
ours. Some of our competitors may have stronger relationships with certain of our channel partners than we do, and
may also provide incentives to these customers to persuade them to favor our competitors� products or, in effect, to
prevent or reduce sales of our products. Our channel partners may independently choose not to purchase or offer our
products. Some of our channel partners are small, are based in a variety of international locations and may have
relatively unsophisticated processes. Any significant disruption to our sales to these channel partners, including as a
result of the inability or unwillingness of these channel partners to continue purchasing our products, or their failure to
properly manage their business with respect to the purchase of and payment for our products, could materially and
adversely impact our business, operating results, financial condition and cash flows. Establishing relationships with
new channel partners and training them in our solution requires significant time and resources. Our failure to continue
to establish or maintain successful relationships with channel partners could likewise materially and adversely affect
our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

Our sales cycles can be long and unpredictable. As a result, our sales are difficult to predict and may vary
substantially from quarter to quarter, which may cause our operating results to fluctuate significantly.

The timing of our sales is difficult to predict. Our sales efforts involve educating our customers about the use and
benefits of our software-based solution, including the technical capabilities of our products and the potential cost
savings achievable by organizations deploying our software-based solution. Customers, particularly in the cable,
satellite and telecommunications industries, typically undertake a significant evaluation process, which frequently
involves not only our products but also those of our competitors and can result in a lengthy sales cycle. We spend
substantial time, effort and money on our sales efforts without any assurance that such efforts will produce any sales.
In addition, purchases of our products are frequently subject to budget constraints, multiple approvals, and unplanned
administrative, processing and other delays. The length of a customer�s deployment period may directly affect the
timing of any subsequent purchase of additional products by that customer. In addition, once we deliver our
software-based solution to our customers, we may not be able to recognize revenue for the sale until the customer
completes its acceptance procedures. If sales expected from a specific customer for a particular quarter are not realized
or completed in that quarter or at all, our operating results, financial condition and cash flows could be materially and
adversely affected.

Our operating results are likely to fluctuate significantly and may fail to meet or exceed the expectations of
securities analysts or investors, causing our stock price to decline.

Our operating results have fluctuated in the past and are likely to continue to fluctuate in the future, on an annual and a
quarterly basis, as a result of several factors, many of which are outside of our control. For example, our revenue for
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the quarter ended July 31, 2012 was $10.8 million compared to $7.2 million for the quarter ended October 31, 2012
due to a general slowdown in spending by our service provider customers, and our revenue for the quarter ended
July 31, 2013 was $11.5 million compared to $7.5 million for the quarter ended April 30, 2013 due to a general
increase in spending by our service provider customers, in particular in North America.

Some of the factors that may cause fluctuations in our operating results include:

� the level and timing of capital spending of our customers, both in the United States and in foreign markets,
due in part to access to financing, including credit, for capital spending;

� economic and financial conditions specific to the telecommunications, cable and satellite service providers,
as well as broadcast, media and Internet content providers;

� changes in market demand for our products or our customers� services or products;

� the timing and amount of orders, especially from significant customers;

� increases and decreases in the number and size of relatively larger transactions, and projects in which we are
involved, from quarter to quarter;
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� the timing of revenue recognition with respect to certain of our sales arrangements, which may include
multiple deliverables and timing of customer acceptance;

� the impact of seasonality in our business, particularly in the first quarter of each fiscal year;

� the timing of completion of our customers� projects;

� competitive market conditions, including pricing actions by our competitors;

� the level and mix of our international revenue;

� new product introductions by our competitors or by us;

� changes in domestic and international regulatory environments affecting our business;

� market acceptance of our new or existing products;

� the impact of new revenue recognition accounting standards;

� customers� access to licensed content;

� the evaluation of new services, new standards and system architectures by our customers;

� the cost and availability to us of components and subassemblies;

� the mix of our customer base, by industry and size, and sales channels;

� the mix of our products sold and the effect it has on gross margins;

� changes in our operating and extraordinary expenses, such as litigation expenses and settlement costs;

� write-downs of inventory and investments;

Edgar Filing: ENVIVIO INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 49



� the impact of applicable accounting guidance that requires us to record the fair value of stock options,
restricted stock units and employee stock purchase plan awards as compensation expense;

� changes in our effective tax rate, including as a result of changes in our valuation allowance against our
deferred tax assets, changes in our effective state tax rates, including as a result of apportionment, and
changes in our mix of domestic versus international revenue, as well as proposed amended tax rules related
to the deferral of foreign earnings and compliance with foreign tax rules;

� the impact of applicable accounting guidance on accounting for uncertainty in income taxes that requires us
to establish reserves for uncertain tax positions and accrue potential tax penalties and interest;

� the timing of any acquisitions and the financial impact of any such acquisitions;

� the impact of applicable accounting guidance on business combinations that requires us to record charges for
certain acquisition-related costs and expenses and generally to expense restructuring costs associated with a
business combination subsequent to the acquisition date; and

� general economic conditions.
We often recognize a substantial portion of our quarterly revenue in the last month of the quarter. We establish our
expenditure levels for product development and other operating expenses based on projected revenue levels for a
specified period, and expenses are relatively fixed in the short term. Accordingly, even small variations in timing of
revenue or revenue recognition, particularly with respect to large individual transactions, can cause significant
fluctuations in operating results in a particular quarter.

As a result of these factors and other factors, our operating results in one or more future periods may fail to meet or
exceed the expectations of securities analysts or investors. In that event, the trading price of our common stock would
likely decline.

We need to develop and introduce new and enhanced products in a timely manner to meet the needs of our
customers and to remain competitive.

All of the markets we address are characterized by continuing technological advancement, changes in customer
requirements and evolving industry standards. To compete successfully, we must continually design, develop,
manufacture and sell new or enhanced products that provide increasingly higher levels of performance and reliability
and meet our customers� changing needs. However, we may not be successful in those efforts if, among other things,
our products:

� are not cost effective;

� are not brought to market in a timely manner;
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� are not in accordance with evolving industry standards and architectures;

� fail to meet market acceptance or customer requirements; or

� are ahead of market demand.
Our encoding products are based on industry video compression standards, which can change rapidly. For example,
encoding products based on the MPEG-2 compression standards are being increasingly replaced by encoding products
based on newer standards, such as MPEG-4 AVC/H.264, that have been recently adopted and provide significantly
greater compression efficiency, thereby making more bandwidth available to operators. The availability of more
bandwidth is particularly important to those operators seeking to launch, or expand, HDTV services. We have
developed and launched products, including HD encoders, based on these new standards in order to remain
competitive, and are continuing to devote considerable resources to these efforts. As industry standards continue to
evolve, however, we must continue to devote significant resources to address these evolving standards. Our efforts to
address these evolving standards may not be successful in the future, or at all, and we may be unable to compete
effectively in our target markets when new industry standards are established.

In order to successfully develop and market certain of our planned products, we may be required to enter into
technology development or licensing agreements with third parties. We cannot provide assurance that we will be able
to enter into any necessary technology development or licensing agreements on reasonable terms, or at all, or that all
of our existing technology license agreements will remain in place.

If we fail to develop and market new and enhanced products in a timely manner, our operating results, financial
condition and cash flows could be materially and adversely affected.

The average sales prices of our products may decrease.

The average sales prices for our products may decline for a variety of reasons, including competitive pricing
pressures, a change in our mix of products, anticipation of the introduction of new products or promotional programs.
The markets in which we compete are highly competitive and we expect this competition to increase in the future,
thereby leading to increased pricing pressures. Larger competitors with more diverse product offerings may reduce the
price of products that compete with ours in order to promote the sale of other products or may bundle them with other
products. For example, some of our large competitors who provide systems integration may offer video headends at
very low prices or on a bundled basis. Furthermore, average sales prices for our products may decrease over product
life cycles. A decline in our average sales prices in excess of our expectations may harm our operating results,
financial condition and cash flows.

We expect gross margin to vary over time, and our level of gross margin may not be sustainable.

Our level of gross margin may not be sustainable and may be adversely affected by numerous factors, including:

� changes in customer (including geographies) or product and service mix;

� introduction of new products;
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� our ability to reduce production costs;

� increases in material or labor costs;

� excess inventory, inventory holding charges and obsolescence charges;

� the timing of revenue recognition and revenue deferrals;

� changes in our distribution channels or arrangements with our channel sales partners;

� level of competition;

� increased warranty costs; and

� inbound shipping charges.
As a result of any of these factors, or other factors, our gross margin may be adversely affected, which in turn would
harm our operating results.
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Our customer base is concentrated, and we are regularly involved in relatively large transactions. The loss of one
or more of our key customers, or a failure to diversify our customer base, as well as a decrease in the number of
such larger transactions, could harm our business.

Historically, a majority of our revenue has been derived from relatively few customers. Sales to our ten largest
customers during the six months ended July 31, 2013 together accounted for approximately 68% of our total revenue.
Sales to our ten largest customers during the six months ended July, 2012 together accounted for approximately 57%
of our total revenue. During the three months ended July 31, 2013, sales to one large customer accounted for 30% of
our total revenue. During the three months ended July 31, 2012, sales to one large channel partner accounted for 12%
of our total revenue. We expect to see continuing industry consolidation and customer concentration. At the same
time, we are currently targeting large customer accounts, which if successful, could increase our concentration risk on
an even smaller group of customers. This customer concentration increases our susceptibility to a slowdown in
spending patterns and decreases in capital spending of our large target customers. As a slowdown in spending by our
large target customers occurs, our operating results can experience a significant decline. Even if we are successful in
selling a large volume of products to these large potential customers, we may not be able to continue to sell such large
volumes to these customers due to the unpredictability in the timing and extent of customer purchases, which could
cause our operating results to fluctuate significantly and decline.

Additionally, we do not enter into long-term contracts or purchase commitments with our customers, and we have no
contractual arrangements for future sales of our products to existing customers. We sell our solution by entering into
purchase orders with our customers. The loss of one or more of our significant customers, any material reduction in
orders by any significant customer, or our failure to qualify our new products with a significant customer could
materially and adversely affect our operating results, financial condition and cash flows. In addition, we are involved
in most quarters in one or more large individual transactions, including, from time to time, projects in which we act
similar to a systems integrator. A decrease in the number of larger individual transactions in which we are involved in
any quarter could adversely affect our operating results for that quarter.

We rely on a single third party to manufacture our products, and depend on this manufacturer for the supply and
quality of our products.

We outsource the manufacturing of our products to a single manufacturer, FutureQuest Incorporated, and are,
therefore, subject to the risk that our third-party manufacturer does not provide our customers with the quality and
performance that they expect from our products. Our manufacturer may not view fulfilling our orders a priority in the
event it is constrained in its ability to fulfill all of its customer obligations in a timely manner. In addition, if we need
to increase our manufacturing capacity beyond what our current manufacturer is able to provide, we may not be able
to meet customer demand on a timely basis. If we are required, or we desire, to replace our manufacturer or add an
additional manufacturer, we may need to expend a considerable amount of resources, time and money to locate
another manufacturer, and as a result, we may experience a delay in our ability to meet customer demand during the
transition process. We place manufacturing orders on a purchase order basis under the terms of a master agreement
with our manufacturer. This agreement is limited to an initial term of one year, with an automatic renewal feature for
additional one-year terms unless either party requests in writing at least 90 days prior to the end of the term not to
renew the agreement. In addition, our manufacturer may terminate this agreement for any reason by providing us
120-days notice of termination. If we are unable to fulfill customer demand, we may lose revenue opportunities and
our reputation could suffer. In addition, we must also predict the number of products that we will require. If we
underestimate our requirements, our manufacturer may have inadequate materials and components required to produce
our products. This could result in an interruption of the manufacturing of our products, delays in shipments and
deferral or loss of revenue. Quality or performance failures of our products or changes in our manufacturer�s financial
or business condition could disrupt our ability to supply quality products to our customers and thereby have a material
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and adverse effect on our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

We use several key components and subassemblies in our products that are supplied from a single source or a
limited number of sources. The loss of any of these suppliers may cause us to incur additional transition costs,
result in delays in the manufacturing and delivery of our products, or cause us to carry excess or obsolete inventory
and could cause us to redesign our products.

While supplies of our components are generally available from a variety of sources, we currently depend on a single
source or limited number of sources for several components for our products. We have also entered into license
agreements with some of our suppliers for technologies that are used in our products, and the termination of these
licenses, which can generally be done on relatively short notice without penalty, could have a material adverse effect
on our business. If we lost any of these suppliers and licensors, we could be required to transition to a new supplier or
licensor, which could increase our costs, result in delays in the manufacturing and delivery of our products or cause us
to carry excess or obsolete inventory, and we could be required to redesign our hardware and software in order to
incorporate components or technologies from alternative sources.

In addition, even for certain components for which there are multiple sources, we are subject to potential price
increases and limited availability due to market demand for such components. An increase in demand for components
and subassemblies that we
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use could cause shortages of these parts and cause an increase in the costs of these parts. If such shortages or price
increases occur in the future, our business would be adversely affected. We carry very little inventory of our products,
and we and our manufacturer rely on our suppliers to deliver necessary components in a timely manner. We and our
manufacturer rely on purchase orders rather than long-term contracts with these suppliers, and as a result, even if
available, we or our manufacturer may not be able to secure sufficient components at reasonable prices or of
acceptable quality to build products in a timely manner and, therefore, may not be able to meet customer demands for
our products, which could have a material and adverse effect on our operating results, financial condition and cash
flows.

Our products include third-party technology and intellectual property, and our inability to use that technology in
the future could harm our business.

We incorporate certain third-party technologies, including software programs, into our products, and intend to utilize
additional third-party technologies in the future. Licenses to relevant third-party technologies or updates to those
technologies may not continue to be available to us on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. In addition, the
technologies that we license may not operate properly or as specified, and we may not be able to secure alternatives in
a timely manner, either of which could harm our business. We could face delays in product releases until alternative
technology can be identified, licensed or developed, and integrated into our products, and we may not be able to do so
at all. These delays, or a failure to secure or develop adequate technology, could materially and adversely affect our
operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

We may engage in future acquisitions that could disrupt our business, cause dilution to our stockholders and
materially and adversely affect our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

In the future we may acquire other businesses, products or technologies. If we do complete acquisitions, we may not
ultimately strengthen our competitive position or achieve our goals, or such acquisitions may be viewed negatively by
customers, financial markets or investors. We may also face additional challenges because acquisitions entail
numerous risks, including:

� difficulties in the integration of acquired operations, technologies and/or products;

� unanticipated costs associated with the acquisition transaction;

� the diversion of management�s attention from the regular operations of the business and the challenges of
managing larger and more widespread operations;

� adverse effects on new and existing business relationships with suppliers and customers;

� risks associated with entering markets in which we have no or limited prior experience;

� the potential loss of key employees of acquired businesses; and
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� delays in realizing or failure to realize the anticipated benefits of an acquisition.
Competition within our industry for acquisitions of businesses, technologies, assets and product lines has been, and
may in the future continue to be, intense. As such, even if we are able to identify an acquisition that we would like to
consummate, we may not be able to complete the acquisition on commercially reasonable terms or because the target
is acquired by another company. Furthermore, in the event that we are able to identify and consummate any future
acquisitions, we could:

� issue equity securities, which would dilute current stockholders� percentage ownership;

� incur substantial debt;

� incur significant acquisition-related expenses;

� assume contingent liabilities; or

� expend significant cash.
We or our customers may face intellectual property infringement and other claims from third parties.

Our industry is characterized by the existence of a large number of patents and frequent claims and related litigation
regarding patent and other intellectual property rights. In particular, leading companies in the telecommunications
industry have extensive patent portfolios. From time to time, third parties may assert in the future, patent, copyright,
trademark and other intellectual property rights against us or our customers. Our suppliers and their customers,
including us, may have similar claims asserted against them. Any future intellectual property litigation, regardless of
its outcome, could result in substantial expense and significant diversion of the efforts of our management and
technical personnel. An adverse determination in any such proceeding could subject us to significant liabilities,
temporary or permanent injunctions, or require us to seek licenses from third parties or pay royalties that may be
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substantial. Furthermore, necessary licenses may not be available on terms satisfactory to us, or at all. An unfavorable
outcome on any such litigation matter could require that we pay substantial damages or ongoing royalty payments or
could prohibit us from selling certain of our products. Any such outcome could have a material adverse effect on our
operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

Our suppliers and customers may have intellectual property claims relating to our products asserted against them. We
have agreed to indemnify some of our suppliers and customers for patent infringement relating to our products. The
scope of this indemnity varies, but, in some instances, includes indemnification for damages and expenses, including
reasonable attorney�s fees, incurred by the supplier or customer in connection with such claims. If a supplier or
customer seeks to enforce a claim for indemnification against us, we could incur significant costs defending against
the underlying claim. An adverse determination in such a proceeding could subject us to significant liabilities.

If we are unable to protect our intellectual property rights, our competitive position could be harmed or we could be
required to incur significant expenses to enforce our rights.

We depend on our ability to protect our proprietary technology. We protect our proprietary information and
technology through licensing agreements, nondisclosure agreements and other contractual provisions, as well as
through patent, trademark, copyright and trade secret laws in the United States and similar laws in other countries.
These protections may not be available in all cases or may be inadequate to prevent our competitors from copying,
reverse engineering or otherwise obtaining and using our technology, proprietary rights or products. In addition, third
parties may seek to challenge, invalidate or circumvent our patents, trademarks, copyrights and trade secrets, or
applications for any of the foregoing. Our competitors may independently develop technologies that are substantially
equivalent, or superior, to our technology or design around our proprietary rights. In each case, our ability to compete
could be significantly impaired.

We also rely on customary contractual protections with our customers, suppliers, distributors, employees and
consultants, and we implement security measures to protect our trade secrets. We cannot assure you that these
contractual protections and security measures will not be breached, that we will have adequate remedies for any such
breach or that our suppliers, employees or consultants will not assert rights to intellectual property arising out of such
contracts.

In addition, our proprietary rights may not be adequately protected because the laws of other countries in which we
market our products may offer little or no protection for our proprietary technologies.

To prevent substantial unauthorized use of our intellectual property rights, it may be necessary to prosecute actions for
infringement or misappropriation of our proprietary rights against third parties. Any such action could result in
significant costs and diversion of our resources and management�s attention, and there can be no assurance that we will
be successful in such action. Furthermore, many of our current and potential competitors have the ability to dedicate
substantially greater resources to enforce their intellectual property rights than we. Accordingly, despite our efforts,
we may not be able to prevent third parties from infringing or misappropriating our intellectual property.

We have a limited patent portfolio. While we plan to protect our intellectual property with, among other things, patent
protection, there can be no assurance that:

� current or future U.S. or future foreign patent applications will be approved;
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� our issued patents will protect our intellectual property and not be held invalid or unenforceable if
challenged by third parties;

� we will succeed in protecting our technology adequately in all key jurisdictions in which we or our
competitors operate;

� the patents of others will not have an adverse effect on our ability to do business; or

� others will not independently develop similar or competing products or methods or design around any
patents that may be issued to us.

The failure to obtain patents with claims of a scope necessary to cover our technology, or the invalidation of our
patents, or our inability to protect any of our intellectual property, may weaken our competitive position and may
materially and adversely affect our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.
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Our products incorporate complex technology and may contain defects or errors, which could negatively affect the
performance of our solution and could harm our reputation and adversely affect our business.

Our products incorporate complex technology that must operate with a significant number and types of devices, which
attempt to run new and complex applications in a variety of environments that utilize different communication
industry standards. Our products have contained and may in the future contain defects or errors. In some cases, these
defects or errors have delayed the introduction of our new products. We may also be subject to liability claims for
damages related to product errors or defects. While we carry insurance policies covering these types of liability
claims, which we believe to be reasonable for the level of our business activity, these policies may not provide
sufficient protection in the event of a liability claim. Moreover, errors in our products are most prevalent when new
products are introduced into the market.

We incorporate third-party hardware into our products which could cause errors or failures of our solution and
damage our reputation.

We incorporate hardware purchased from third parties into our products. This hardware has in the past, and may in the
future contain errors or defects, which in turn could result in errors or a failure of our solution. We may not learn of
these hardware errors or defects until after we have shipped our solution to our customers. Errors or defects in the
third-party hardware that we incorporate into our products could significantly damage our reputation, even though we
did not cause these errors or defects, which could have a material and adverse effect on our operating results, financial
condition and cash flows.

Our ability to sell our products is highly dependent on the quality of our support and service offerings, and our
failure to offer high-quality support and services would harm our operating results and reputation.

Once our products are deployed within our customers� networks, our customers depend on our support organization to
resolve any issues relating to our products. A high level of support is critical for the successful marketing and sale of
our products. If we or our channel partners do not effectively assist our customers in deploying our products, succeed
in helping our customers quickly resolve post-deployment issues, and provide effective ongoing support, it would
adversely affect our ability to sell our products to existing customers and would harm our reputation with potential
customers. In addition, as we expand our operations internationally, our support organization will face additional
challenges, including those associated with delivering support, training and documentation in languages other than
English. Any failure to maintain high-quality support and services could materially and adversely affect our operating
results, financial condition and cash flows.

We are an �emerging growth company,� and intend to comply with reduced public company reporting
requirements applicable to emerging growth companies, which could make our common stock less attractive to
investors.

We are an �emerging growth company,� as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act (the �JOBS Act�) enacted
in April 2012, and, for as long as we continue to be an �emerging growth company,� we intend to take advantage of
exemptions from various reporting requirements applicable to other public companies but not to �emerging growth
companies,� including, but not limited to, not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or Sarbanes-Oxley Act, reduced disclosure obligations regarding
executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements, and exemptions from the requirements of
holding a nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation and stockholder approval of any golden parachute
payments not previously approved. We will remain an �emerging growth company� for up to five years, although, we
would cease to be an �emerging growth company� upon the earliest of (i) fiscal year 2019, (ii) the first fiscal year after
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our annual gross revenue is $1 billion or more, (iii) the date on which we have, during the previous three-year period,
issued more than $1 billion in non-convertible debt securities, or (iv) the date on which we are deemed to be a �large
accelerated filer� as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. We cannot predict if investors will find our
common stock less attractive if we choose to continue to rely on these exemptions. If some investors find our common
stock less attractive as a result of any choices to reduce future disclosure, there may be a less active trading market for
our common stock and our stock price may be more volatile.

Under the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act, �emerging growth companies� can delay adopting new or revised
accounting standards until such time as those standards apply to private companies. However, we have irrevocably
elected not to avail ourselves of this exemption from new or revised accounting standards and, therefore, we will be
subject to the same new or revised accounting standards as other public companies that are not �emerging growth
companies.�

We will not be required to comply with certain provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for as long as we remain an
�emerging growth company.�

Our independent registered public accounting firm is not required to formally attest to the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting until the date we are no longer an �emerging growth company.� At such time an
attestation is required by our independent registered public accounting firm, they may issue a report that is adverse in
the event they are not satisfied with the level
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at which our controls are documented, designed or operating. We will remain an �emerging growth company� for up to
five years, although, we would cease to be an �emerging growth company� upon the earliest of (i) fiscal year 2019,
(ii) the first fiscal year after our annual gross revenue is $1 billion or more, (iii) the date on which we have, during the
previous three-year period, issued more than $1 billion in non-convertible debt securities, or (iv) the date on which we
are deemed to be a �large accelerated filer� as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

However, even as an �emerging growth company� we will be required to comply with certain of the SEC rules that
implement Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act as we will be required to disclose changes made in our internal
control procedures on a quarterly basis and to make our first annual assessment of our internal control over financial
reporting pursuant to Section 404 in the year following our first annual report required to be filed with the SEC.

We will incur significant increased costs as a result of operating as a public company, our management has limited
experience managing a public company, and our management devotes substantial time to new compliance
initiatives.

As a public company and particularly after we cease to be an �emerging growth company,� we will incur significant
legal, accounting and other expenses that we did not incur as a private company. In addition, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
and the Dodd-Frank Act of 2010, as well as rules subsequently implemented by the SEC and the Nasdaq Stock
Market, or NASDAQ, impose a number of requirements on public companies, including requiring changes in
corporate governance practices. Our management and other personnel will need to devote a substantial amount of time
to these new compliance initiatives. Moreover, these rules and regulations will increase our legal, accounting and
financial compliance costs and will make some activities more time-consuming and costly. For example, we expect
these new rules and regulations to make it more difficult and more expensive for us to obtain director and officer
liability insurance, and we may be required to accept reduced policy limits and coverage or incur substantial costs to
maintain the same or similar coverage. These rules and regulations could also make it more difficult for us to attract
and retain qualified persons to serve on our board of directors, our board committees or as executive officers.

In addition, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, among other things, that we assess the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting annually and disclosure controls and procedures quarterly. Our compliance with
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act will require that we incur substantial accounting expense and expend
significant management time on compliance-related issues.

If we are unable to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting, the accuracy and timing of our
financial reporting may be adversely affected.

We are required to maintain internal controls over financial reporting and to report any material weaknesses in such
internal controls. In addition, beginning with our Annual Report on Form 10-K to be filed in 2014, we will be required
to furnish a report by management on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting pursuant to
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. We are in the process of designing, implementing, and testing the internal
control over financial reporting required to comply with this obligation, which process is time consuming, costly, and
complicated. If we identify material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting, if we are unable to
comply with the requirements of Section 404 in a timely manner or assert that our internal control over financial
reporting is effective, investors may lose confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports and the
trading price of our common stock could be negatively affected, and we could become subject to investigations by the
stock exchange on which our securities are listed, the SEC, or other regulatory authorities, which could require
additional financial and management resources.

We have a limited operating history, which makes it difficult to predict our future operating results.
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We were incorporated in January 2000 and began commercial shipments of our products in 2001. As a result of our
limited operating history, it is very difficult to forecast our future operating results. For example, our revenue results
for fiscal 2013 were significantly below our expectations. We face challenges in our business and financial planning
as a result of the uncertainties resulting from having had a relatively limited time period in which to implement and
evaluate our business strategies as compared to more mature companies with longer operating histories. In addition,
we typically sell our products on a purchase order basis, and not under long-term contracts, which means we do not
have extended visibility into our future levels of revenue. These uncertainties make it difficult to predict our future
operating results. If the assumptions we use to plan our business are incorrect or change in reaction to a change in our
markets, our operating results, financial condition and cash flows could be materially and adversely affected.

We must increase market awareness of our software-based solution and develop and expand our sales channels
and opportunities, and if we are unsuccessful, our operating results, financial condition and cash flows could be
materially and adversely affected.

We must improve the market awareness of our software-based solution and expand our relationships with our channel
partners in order to increase our revenue. We must also improve our sales execution to, among other things, increase
the number of our sales
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opportunities. We intend to continue to add personnel and to expend resources in our sales and marketing functions as
we focus on expanding awareness of our software-based solution. Further, we believe that we must continue to
develop our relationships with new and existing channel partners and create additional sales opportunities to
effectively and efficiently extend our geographic reach and market penetration. Our efforts to improve our sales could
result in a material increase in our sales and marketing expense and general and administrative expense, and there can
be no assurance that such efforts will be successful. If we are unable to significantly increase the awareness of our
software-based solution, create additional sales opportunities, expand our relationships with channel partners, or
effectively manage the costs associated with these efforts, our operating results, financial condition and cash flows
could be materially and adversely affected.

We depend significantly on our international revenue and are subject to the risks associated with international
operations, which may negatively affect our operating results.

Revenue derived from customers outside of the United States during the three months ended July 31, 2013 and 2012
represented 51% and 85% of our revenue, respectively, and during the six months ended July 31, 2013 and 2012
represented 43% and 85% of our revenue, respectively. We expect that international revenue will continue to represent
a substantial percentage of our revenue for the foreseeable future. Our international operations and our efforts to
maintain and increase revenue in international markets are subject to a number of risks, which are generally greater
with respect to emerging market countries, including the impact on our business and operating results of:

� general economic conditions in international economies, which may adversely affect our customers� capital
spending;

� changes in foreign government regulations and standards;

� import and export license requirements, tariffs, taxes and other trade barriers;

� fluctuations in currency exchange rates;

� a significant reliance on distributors, resellers and other third parties to sell our products and solutions,
particularly in emerging market countries;

� difficulty in collecting accounts receivable, especially from smaller customers and resellers, particularly in
emerging market countries;

� compliance with the United States Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, or FCPA, and the Office of Foreign Asset
Control regulations, particularly in emerging market countries;

� the burden of complying with a wide variety of foreign laws, treaties and technical standards;
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� fulfilling �country of origin� requirements for our products for certain customers;

� difficulty in staffing and managing foreign operations;

� political and economic instability, including risks related to terrorist activity, particularly in emerging market
countries;

� changes in economic policies by foreign governments;

� lack of basic infrastructure, particularly in emerging market countries;

� availability of credit, particularly in emerging market countries; and

� impact of the recent escalating social and political unrest, particularly in the Middle East.
In the past, certain of our international customers accumulated significant levels of debt and have undertaken
reorganizations and financial restructurings, including bankruptcy proceedings. Even where these restructurings have
been completed, in some cases these customers have not been in a position to purchase new equipment at levels we
had seen in the past.

Furthermore, payment cycles for international customers are typically longer than those for customers in the United
States. Unpredictable payment cycles could cause us to fail to meet or exceed the expectations of securities analysts
and investors for any given period.

The effect of one or more of these international risks could have a material and adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.
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We are exposed to fluctuations in currency exchange rates, which could negatively affect our financial condition
and results of operations.

While our international revenue has typically been denominated in U.S. dollars, fluctuations in currency exchange
rates could cause our products to become relatively more expensive to customers in a particular country, leading to a
reduction in revenue or profitability from sales in that country. A portion of our overall expenses, primarily from our
research and development facility in France, is denominated in Euros, which subjects us to increased foreign currency
risk. We currently do not enter into hedging arrangements to minimize the impact of foreign currency fluctuations.
Our exposure to foreign currency fluctuation may change over time as our business practices evolve and could have a
material adverse impact on our financial condition and results of operations. Gains and losses on the conversion to
U.S. dollars of accounts payable and other monetary assets and liabilities arising from international operations may
contribute to fluctuations in operating results.

Our use of, and reliance on, research and development resources in France may expose us to unanticipated costs
or events.

We have a significant research and development center in France and, in recent years, have increased headcount and
development activity at this facility. Our research and development efforts and other operations in France involve
significant risks, including:

� difficulty hiring and retaining appropriate engineering personnel due to competition for such limited
resources;

� a disruption in relations with our employees;

� fluctuations in currency exchange rates between the Euro and the U.S. dollar; and

� compliance with regulatory requirements, including local employment regulations and organized labor.
Difficulties resulting from the factors above and other risks related to our operations in France could expose us to
increased expense, impair our development efforts and harm our competitive position.

If we do not appropriately manage any future growth, or are unable to improve our systems and processes, our
operating results could be negatively affected.

Our future growth, if it occurs, could place significant demands on our management, infrastructure and other
resources. We may need to increasingly rely on information technology systems, some of which we do not currently
have significant experience in operating, to help manage critical functions. Some of our critical information
technology systems are hosted by third parties, and we may have interruptions in our ability to access these systems in
a timely manner, which could disrupt our business. To manage any future growth effectively, we must continue to
improve and expand our information technology and financial infrastructure, operating and administrative systems
and controls, and continue to manage headcount, capital and processes in an efficient manner. We may not be able to
successfully implement improvements to these systems and processes in a timely or efficient manner, which could
result in additional operating inefficiencies and could cause our costs to increase more than planned. If we do increase
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our operating expenses in anticipation of the growth of our business and this growth does not meet our expectations,
our financial results may be negatively impacted. In addition, our systems and processes may not prevent or detect all
errors, omissions or fraud. Our failure to improve our systems and processes, or their failure to operate in the intended
manner, may result in our inability to manage the growth of our business and to accurately forecast our revenue,
expenses and earnings, or to prevent certain losses. Any future growth would add complexity to our organization and
require effective coordination within our organization. Failure to manage any future growth effectively could result in
increased costs and harm our business.

If demand for our products increases more quickly than we expect, we may be unable to meet our customers�
requirements.

If demand for our products increases, the difficulty of accurately forecasting our customers� requirements and meeting
these requirements will increase. Forecasting customers� needs and effectively managing our supply chain is
particularly difficult in connection with newer products. Our ability to meet customer demand depends significantly
on the availability of components and other materials, as well as the ability of our contract manufacturers to scale their
production. Furthermore, we purchase several key components and subassemblies used in the manufacture or
integration of our products from sole or limited sources. Our ability to meet customer requirements depends in part on
our ability to obtain sufficient volumes of these materials in a timely fashion. Increases in demand on our suppliers
and subcontractors from other customers may cause sporadic shortages of certain components and products. In order
to be able to respond to these issues, we may increase our inventories of certain components and products, particularly
for our customers that order significant dollar amounts of our products, and expedited shipments of our products when
necessary, which may increase our costs and could increase our risk of holding obsolete or excessive inventory.
Nevertheless, we may be unable to respond to customer demand if it increases more quickly than we expect. If we fail
to meet customers� supply expectations, our revenue would be adversely affected and we may lose business, which
could materially and adversely affect our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.
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We may invest in engineering, sales, marketing, services and infrastructure, and these investments, if made, may
achieve delayed or lower than expected benefits, which could harm our operating results, financial condition and
cash flows.

We intend to continue to add personnel and other resources to our engineering, sales, marketing, services and
infrastructure functions as we focus on developing new technologies, growing our market segment, capitalizing on
existing or new market opportunities, increasing our market share, and enabling our business operations to meet
anticipated demand. We are likely to recognize the costs associated with any of these investments earlier than some of
the anticipated benefits and the return on these investments may be lower, or may develop more slowly, than we
expect. If we do not achieve the benefits anticipated from these investments, or if the achievement of these benefits is
delayed, our operating results, financial condition and cash flows could be materially and adversely affected.

Our reported financial results may be adversely affected by changes in accounting principles applicable to us.

Generally accepted accounting principles in the United States are subject to interpretation by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board, or FASB, the SEC and other various bodies formed to promulgate and interpret appropriate
accounting principles. A change in these principles or interpretations could have a significant effect on our reported
financial results. In addition, the SEC has announced a multi-year plan that could ultimately lead to the use of
International Financial Reporting Standards by U.S. issuers in their SEC filings. Any such change could have a
significant effect on our reported financial results.

If our estimates or judgments relating to our critical accounting policies are based on assumptions that change or
prove to be incorrect, our operating results could fall below expectations of securities analysts and investors,
resulting in a decline in our stock price.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in our consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions
that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, as described under �Management�s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations� in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, the results of which form the
basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Our operating results may be adversely affected if our assumptions change or if actual circumstances differ
from those in our assumptions, which could cause our operating results to fall below market expectations, resulting in
a decline in our stock price. Significant assumptions and estimates used in preparing our consolidated financial
statements include those related to revenue recognition, allowances for doubtful accounts, valuation of deferred
inventory costs, useful lives of property and equipment, valuation of deferred tax assets and stock-based
compensation.

Our future capital needs are uncertain, and we may need to raise additional funds in the future.

We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash requirements for
at least the next 12 months. We may, however, need to raise substantial additional capital to:

� expand the commercialization of our products;
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� fund our operations;

� continue our research and development;

� defend, in litigation or otherwise, any claims that we infringe third-party patents or violate other intellectual
property rights;

� commercialize new products; and

� acquire companies and in-license products or intellectual property.
Our future funding requirements will depend on many factors, including:

� market acceptance of our products;

� the cost of our research and development activities;

� the cost of filing and prosecuting patent applications;

� the cost of defending, in litigation or otherwise, any claims that we infringe third-party patents or violate
other intellectual property rights;

� the cost and timing of establishing additional sales, marketing and distribution capabilities;

� the cost and timing of establishing additional technical support capabilities;
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� the effect of competing technological and market developments; and

� the market for such funding requirements and overall economic conditions.
If we require additional funds in the future, such funds may not be available on acceptable terms, or at all.

We may require additional funds in the future and we may not be able to obtain such funds on acceptable terms, or at
all. If we raise additional funds by issuing equity securities, our stockholders may experience dilution. Debt financing,
if available, may involve covenants restricting our operations or our ability to incur additional debt. Any debt or
additional equity financing that we raise may contain terms that are not favorable to us or our stockholders. If we do
not have, or are not able to obtain, sufficient funds, we may have to delay development or commercialization of our
products or license to third parties the rights to commercialize products or technologies that we would otherwise seek
to commercialize. If we raise additional funds through collaboration and licensing arrangements with third parties, it
may be necessary to relinquish some rights to our technologies or our products, or grant licenses on terms that are not
favorable to us. If we are unable to raise adequate funds, we may have to liquidate some or all of our assets, or delay,
reduce the scope of or eliminate some or all of our development programs. We also may have to reduce marketing,
customer support or other resources devoted to our products or cease operations. Any of these factors could materially
and adversely affect our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

If we are not successful in addressing management succession issues and attracting and retaining qualified
personnel, our business and operating results could be materially and adversely affected.

Our future success will depend, to a significant extent, on the ability of our management to operate effectively, both
individually and as a group. We must successfully manage transition and replacement issues that may result from the
departure or retirement of members of our executive management, whether in the context of an acquisition or
otherwise. For example, in January 2013, we hired Ira Goldfarb to serve as our Senior Vice President of Global Sales
and Services. If we are unable to effectively integrate executive management, such as Mr. Goldfarb, into our
operations, then our business and financial results could be materially and adversely affected. Changes of management
personnel in the future could cause disruption to our operations or customer relationships or a decline in our operating
results.

We are also dependent on our ability to retain and motivate our existing highly qualified personnel, including Julien
Signès, our President and Chief Executive Officer. These personnel may terminate employment with us at any time
with no advance notice. The replacement of Mr. Signès likely would involve significant time and costs, and the loss of
his services may significantly delay or prevent the achievement of our business objectives.

Competition for highly skilled personnel is frequently intense, especially in the locations where we have a substantial
presence and need for highly-skilled personnel, including the San Francisco Bay Area and France. We may not be
successful in attracting qualified personnel to fulfill our current or future needs. Competitors and others have in the
past attempted, and are likely in the future to attempt, to recruit our employees. While our employees are required to
sign standard agreements concerning confidentiality and ownership of inventions, we generally do not have
employment contracts or non-competition agreements with any of our personnel. The loss of the services of any of our
key personnel, the inability to attract or retain highly qualified personnel in the future or delays in hiring such
personnel, particularly senior management and engineers and other technical personnel, could materially and
adversely affect our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

We are subject to import and export controls that could subject us to liability or impair our ability to compete in
international markets.
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Our products are subject to U.S. export controls, and may be exported outside the United States only with the required
level of export license or through an export license exception, in most cases because we incorporate encryption
technology into our products. In addition, various countries regulate the import of certain technology and have enacted
laws that could limit our ability to distribute our products or could limit our customers� ability to implement our
products in those countries. Changes in our products or changes in export and import regulations may create delays in
the introduction of our products in international markets, prevent our customers with international operations from
deploying our products throughout their global systems or, in some cases, prevent the export or import of our products
to certain countries altogether. Any change in export or import regulations or related legislation, shift in approach to
the enforcement or scope of existing regulations, or change in the countries, persons or technologies targeted by such
regulations, could result in decreased use of our products by, or in our decreased ability to export or sell our products
to, existing or potential customers internationally.

In addition, we may be subject to customs duties that could have a significant adverse impact on our operating results
or, if we are able to pass on the related costs in any particular situation, would increase the cost of the related product
to our customers. As a result, the future imposition of significant increases in the level of customs duties or the
creation of import quotas on our products in
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Europe or in other jurisdictions, or any of the limitations on international sales described above, could have a material
adverse effect on our business, operating results, financial condition and cash flows. Further, some of our customers in
Europe have been, or are being, audited by local governmental authorities regarding the tariff classifications used for
importation of our products. Import duties and tariffs vary by country and a different tariff classification for any of our
products may result in higher duties or tariffs, which could have an adverse impact on our operating results and
potentially increase the cost of the related products to our customers.

Our limited use of open source software could impose limitations on our ability to commercialize our products.

Our products contain software modules licensed for use from third-party authors under open source licenses, including
the GNU Public License, the GNU Lesser Public License, the Apache License and others. Use and distribution of
open source software may entail greater risks than use of third-party commercial software, as open source licensors
generally do not provide warranties or other contractual protections regarding infringement claims or the quality of the
code. Some open source licenses contain requirements that we make available source code for modifications or
derivative works we create based upon the type of open source software we use. If we combine our proprietary
software with open source software in a certain manner, we could, under certain of the open source licenses, be
required to release the source code of our proprietary software to the public. This could allow our competitors to
create similar products with lower development effort and in less time and ultimately could result in a loss of product
sales for us.

Although we monitor our use of open source closely, it is possible our past, present or future use of open source has
triggered or may trigger the foregoing requirements. Furthermore, the terms of many open source licenses have not
been interpreted by U.S. courts, and there is a risk that such licenses could be construed in a manner that could impose
unanticipated conditions or restrictions on our ability to commercialize our products. In such event, we could be
required to seek licenses from third parties in order to continue offering our products, to re-engineer our products or to
discontinue the sale of our products in the event re-engineering cannot be accomplished on a timely basis, any of
which could materially and adversely affect our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

We could be required to provide the source code of our products to our customers.

Some of our customers have the right to require the source code of our products to be deposited into a source code
escrow. Under certain circumstances, our source code could be released to our customers. The conditions triggering
the release of our source code vary by customer, but include, among other things, breach of the applicable customer
agreement, failure to provide required product support or maintenance, or if we are subject to a bankruptcy proceeding
or otherwise fail to carry on our business in the ordinary course. A release of our source code would give our
customers access to our trade secrets and other proprietary and confidential information.

Our ability to use net operating losses to offset future taxable income may be subject to certain limitations.

In general, under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the Internal Revenue Code, a
corporation that undergoes an �ownership change� is subject to limitations on its ability to utilize its pre-change net
operating losses, or NOLs, to offset future taxable income. Our existing NOLs may be subject to limitations arising
from previous ownership changes. In addition, future changes in our stock ownership, many of which are outside of
our control, could result in an ownership change under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. Our net operating
losses may also be impaired under state law. Accordingly, we may not be able to utilize a material portion of the
NOLs.
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An economic downturn, including developments in the financial markets in the United States and elsewhere in the
world, may materially and adversely affect our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

Financial markets in the United States, Europe and Asia have recently experienced extreme disruption, including,
among other things, extreme volatility in security prices, severely diminished liquidity and credit availability, rating
downgrades of certain investments and declining valuations of others. Governments have taken unprecedented actions
intended to address extreme market conditions, such as the severe restrictions on credit and declines in real estate
values. While currently these conditions have not impaired our ability to access credit markets and finance operations,
there can be no assurance that there will not be a further deterioration in financial markets and confidence in major
economies. These economic developments affect our business in a number of ways. A tightening of credit in financial
markets may adversely affect the ability of our customers and suppliers to obtain financing for significant purchases
and operations, and could result in a decrease in demand for our products and services. Our customers� ability to pay
for our solution may also be impaired, which may lead to an increase in our allowance for doubtful accounts and
write-offs of accounts receivable, reducing our cash flow.

Our global business could also be adversely affected by decreases in the general level of economic activity, such as
decreases in business and consumer spending. Our success depends on our ability to effectively plan and manage our
resources through rapidly
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fluctuating economic market conditions. We are unable to predict the likely duration and severity of any disruption in
financial markets and adverse economic conditions in the United States and other countries. Should these economic
conditions result in our not meeting our revenue growth objectives, it may have a material and adverse effect on our
operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

Changes in our provision for income taxes or adverse outcomes resulting from examination of our income tax
returns could materially and adversely affect our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

Our provision for income taxes is subject to volatility and could be adversely affected by the following:

� earnings being lower than anticipated in countries that have lower tax rates and higher than anticipated in
countries that have higher tax rates;

� changes in the valuation of our deferred tax assets and liabilities;

� expiration of, or lapses in, the research and development tax credit laws;

� transfer pricing adjustments;

� tax effects of nondeductible compensation;

� tax costs related to intercompany realignments;

� changes in accounting principles; or

� changes in tax laws and regulations, including possible changes to the taxation of earnings in the United
States of our foreign subsidiaries, and the deductibility of expenses attributable to foreign income, or the
foreign tax credit rules.

Significant judgment is required to determine the recognition and measurement attribute prescribed in the accounting
guidance for uncertainty in income taxes. The accounting guidance for uncertainty in income taxes applies to all
income tax positions, including the potential recovery of previously paid taxes, which if settled unfavorably could
adversely impact our provision for income taxes or additional paid-in capital. In addition, we are subject to the
examination of our income tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service and other tax authorities. We regularly assess
the likelihood of adverse outcomes resulting from these examinations to determine the adequacy of our provision for
income taxes. The outcomes from these examinations may have a material and adverse effect on our operating results,
financial condition and cash flows.

Our business is subject to the risks of earthquakes, fire and other natural catastrophic events.
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Our corporate headquarters are located in the San Francisco Bay Area, a region known for seismic activity. We also
have significant research and development activities in France and facilities in Asia, regions that have experienced
fires, floods and other natural disasters. Our customers and suppliers may also experience a disruption in their
business as a result of natural disasters, which could negatively impact our business. A significant natural disaster,
such as an earthquake, flood or fire, occurring at our headquarters, our other facilities or where our channel partners,
suppliers or customers are located, could have a material and adverse effect on our operating results, financial
condition and cash flows.

Man-made problems such as computer viruses, terrorism or electrical blackouts may disrupt our operations and
could adversely affect our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

Despite our implementation of network security measures, our servers are vulnerable to computer viruses, break-ins
and similar disruptions from unauthorized tampering with our computer systems. Any such event could have a
material adverse effect on our business, operating results, and financial condition. Efforts to limit the ability of third
parties to disrupt the operations of the Internet or undermine our own security efforts may be ineffective. In addition,
the continued threat of terrorism and heightened security and military action in response to this threat, or any future
acts of terrorism, may cause further disruptions to the economies of the United States and other countries and create
further uncertainties or otherwise materially harm our business, operating results, and financial condition. Likewise,
events such as widespread electrical blackouts could have similar negative impacts. To the extent that such disruptions
or uncertainties result in delays or cancellations of customer orders, our research and development efforts or the
deployment, manufacture or shipment of our products, our operating results, financial condition and cash flows could
be materially and adversely affected.
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Risks Related to Our Industry

Our future growth depends on market acceptance of several broadband services, on the adoption of new broadband
technologies and on several other broadband industry trends.

Future demand for many of our products will depend significantly on the growing market acceptance of, and demand
for, emerging broadband services, including digital video, on-demand video services, HD video, IPTV, mobile video
services and high-speed data services. The market demand for such emerging services is rapidly growing, with many
de facto or proprietary systems in use, which increases the challenge of delivering interoperable products intended to
address the requirements of such services.

The effective delivery of these services will depend, in part, on a variety of new network architectures, standards and
equipment, such as:

� video compression standards, such as MPEG-4 AVC/H.264, for both standard definition and high definition
services;

� delivery of high-speed services, such as fiber-to-the-premises, or FTTP, and digital subscriber line, or DSL,
networks designed to facilitate the delivery of video services by telecommunications operators;

� higher speed mobile technologies, such as LTE or 3G;

� the further adoption of bandwidth-optimization techniques, such as switched digital video and DOCSIS 3.0;
and

� the introduction of new consumer devices, such as advanced set-top boxes, personal video recorders, or
PVRs, and a variety of smartphones, such as the iPhone.

If adoption of these emerging services or technologies is not as widespread or as rapid as we expect, or if we are
unable to develop new products based on these technologies on a timely basis, our revenue will be materially and
adversely affected.

Furthermore, other technological, industry and regulatory trends will affect the growth of our business. These trends
include the following:

� convergence, or the need of many network operators to deliver a package of video, voice and data services to
consumers, including mobile delivery options;

� the increasing availability of traditional broadcast video content on the Internet;
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� the further penetration of telecommunications operators into video service delivery;

� the emergence of a viable mobile video content delivery standard;

� efforts by regulators and governments in the United States and abroad to encourage the adoption of
broadband and digital technologies;

� increased consumer interest in 3D television and content;

� the extent and nature of regulatory attitudes towards such issues as network neutrality, competition between
operators, access by third parties to networks of other operators, local franchising requirements for
telecommunications operators to offer video, and other new services, such as mobile video; and

� the outcome of litigation and negotiations between content owners and service providers regarding rights of
service providers to store and distribute recorded broadcast content, which outcomes may drive adoption of
one technology over another in some cases.

If we fail to recognize and respond to these trends by timely developing products, features and services required by
these trends, we are likely to lose revenue opportunities and our operating results, financial condition and cash flows
could be materially and adversely affected.

Changes in telecommunications legislation and regulations could harm our prospects and future revenue.

Changes in telecommunications legislation and regulations in the United States and other countries could affect the
revenue from our products. In particular, regulations dealing with access by competitors to the networks of incumbent
operators could slow or stop additional construction or expansion by these operators. Increased regulation of our
customers� pricing or service offerings could limit their investments and, consequently, revenue from our products.
The impact of new or revised legislation or regulations could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating
results and financial condition.

Newly adopted regulations will likely impact the demand for product features by our customers. For example, in the
United States, these regulations include the Commercial Advertisement Loudness Mitigation Act and the Twenty-First
Century
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Communications and Video Accessibility Act of 2010, which address accessibility for the hearing and visually
impaired. We may be required to add features to our products to address these regulations or new regulations in the
future. These and other regulations may require us to develop features on a schedule which may be inflexible and
difficult to meet. In addition, certain countries do not currently allow for specific types of video distribution, such as
IPTV, or restrict our customers from delivering video using certain technology. These restrictions could prohibit or
limit our ability to sell our solution in these countries. Changes in legislation and regulations could result in our
inability to develop other product features necessary for particular transactions at the same time, and thus we could
lose business and the related revenue.

The markets in which we operate are intensely competitive.

The markets for our products are extremely competitive and have been characterized by rapid technological change
and declining average sales prices. We may face declining average sales prices during economic downturns as
equipment suppliers compete aggressively for customers� reduced capital spending.

Currently, we compete with companies focused on more traditional broadcast delivery, including Harmonic Inc. We
also compete with companies focused on multi-screen encoding, including Cisco Systems, Inc. (through its acquisition
of Inlet Technologies LLC), Elemental Technologies and RGB Networks, Inc. (through its acquisition of RipCode,
Inc.). Due to the evolving competitive landscape and growing market opportunity, we expect to encounter direct
competition in the future from one or more larger traditional network infrastructure providers that may be one of our
systems integrators, such as Motorola Mobility and Ericsson AB. These network equipment companies may provide,
as a package, encoding solutions in combination with other equipment that they traditionally sell to service providers.

Many of our competitors are substantially larger than us, and have greater financial, technical, marketing and other
resources than we do. Many of these large enterprises are in a better position to withstand any significant reduction in
capital spending by customers in these markets. They often have broader product lines and market focus, and may not
be as susceptible to downturns in a particular market. These competitors may also be able to bundle their products
together to meet the needs of a particular customer, and may be capable of delivering more complete solutions than
we are able to provide. To the extent large enterprises that currently do not compete directly with us choose to enter
our markets by acquisition or otherwise, competition would likely intensify.

Further, some of our competitors that have greater financial resources have offered, and in the future may offer, their
products at lower prices than we offer for our competing products or on more attractive financing terms, which has in
the past caused, and may in the future cause, us to lose sales opportunities and the resulting revenue or to reduce our
prices in response to that competition. Reductions in prices for any of our products could materially and adversely
affect our operating margins and revenue. In addition, many of our competitors have been in operation longer than we
have, and therefore, have more long-standing and established relationships with domestic and foreign customers,
making it difficult for us to establish relationships with and to sell our products to those customers.

If any of our competitors� products or technologies were to become the industry standard, our business would be
seriously harmed. If our competitors are successful in bringing their products to market earlier than us, or if these
products are more technologically capable than ours, or are deemed by customers to be more technologically capable
than ours, our revenue could be materially and adversely affected. In addition, certain companies that have not had a
large presence in the broadband communications equipment market have begun to expand their presence in this
market through mergers and acquisitions. The continued consolidation of our competitors could have a significant
negative impact on our business.
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If we are unable to compete effectively in any of our markets, or are forced to reduce the prices of our products in
order to continue to be competitive, our operating results, financial condition and cash flows could be materially and
adversely affected.

Video delivery markets are characterized by rapid technological change.

Video delivery markets are subject to rapid changes, making it difficult to accurately predict the markets� future
growth rates, sizes or technological directions. In view of the evolving nature of these markets, it is possible that
Pay-TV service providers, broadcasters, content providers and other video production and delivery companies will
decide to adopt alternative architectures, new business models, or technologies that are incompatible with our current
or future products. In addition, successful new entrants into the media markets, both domestic and international, may
impact existing industry business models, resulting in decreased spending by our existing customer base. Finally,
decisions by customers to adopt new technologies or products are often delayed by extensive evaluation and
qualification processes, which can result in delays in revenue of current and new products. If we are unable to design,
develop, manufacture and sell products that incorporate, or are compatible with, these new architectures or
technologies, our operating results, financial condition and cash flows could be materially and adversely affected.
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We are subject to various laws and regulations related to the environment and potential climate change that could
impose substantial costs upon us and may adversely affect our business, operating results and financial condition.

Our operations are regulated under various federal, state, local and international laws relating to the environment and
potential climate change, including those governing the management, disposal and labeling of hazardous substances
and waste and the cleanup of contaminated sites. We could incur costs and fines, third-party property damage or
personal injury claims, or could be required to incur substantial investigation or remediation costs, if we were to
violate or become liable under environmental laws. The ultimate costs to us under these laws and the timing of these
costs are difficult to predict.

We also face increasing complexity in our product design as we adjust to new and future requirements relating to the
presence of certain substances in electronic products and requiring producers of those products to be financially
responsible for the collection, treatment, recycling and disposal of certain products. For example, the European
Parliament and the Council of the European Union have enacted the Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
(WEEE) directive, which regulates the collection, recovery and recycling of waste from electrical and electronic
products, and the Restriction on the Use of Certain Hazardous Substances in Electrical and Electronic Equipment
(RoHS) directive, which bans the use of certain hazardous materials, including lead, mercury, cadmium, hexavalent
chromium, polybrominated biphenyls (PBBs) and polybrominated diphenyl ethers (PBDEs) that exceed certain
specified levels. Legislation similar to RoHS and WEEE has been or may be enacted in other jurisdictions, including
in the United States, Japan and China. Our failure to comply with these laws could result in our being directly or
indirectly liable for costs, fines or penalties and third-party claims, and could jeopardize our ability to conduct
business in such regions and countries.

We also expect that our operations will be affected by other new environmental laws and regulations on an ongoing
basis. Although we cannot predict the ultimate impact of any such new laws and regulations, they will likely result in
additional costs, and could require that we redesign or change how we manufacture our products, any of which could
have a material and adverse effect on our operating results, financial condition and cash flows.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

There may have been potential deficiencies in the process by which we obtained approvals of certain prior
amendments to our certificate of incorporation. As a result, stockholders who acquired shares of our capital stock
prior to our IPO and who did not participate in our 2011 exchange offer could have claims against us for
additional or different shares of our capital stock, for monetary damages or both.

There may have been potential deficiencies in the process by which we obtained approvals of prior amendments to our
certificate of incorporation, and in particular the means by which our certificate of incorporation was approved in
connection with our Series D preferred stock financing in 2003, or the Series D charter. Delaware law, which is the
state in which we are incorporated, requires a specific ordering of board and stockholder approvals in order for charter
amendments to be properly approved. Our records from the Series D financing, which occurred nine years ago and
among other things effected a 1-for-100 reverse stock split and an automatic conversion into shares of common stock
of all of the then-outstanding shares of Series A preferred stock, Series B preferred stock, Series C1 preferred stock
and Series C2 preferred stock held by any stockholder who did not purchase its full pro rata allocation in the Series D
financing, do not provide clear evidence that the ordering process was correctly adhered to in all instances.

There are Delaware court decisions that have emphasized the importance of strict compliance with the board and
stockholder approval requirements for charter amendments, and the Delaware courts have concluded in those
decisions that non-compliance may result in invalidation of the purported amendments. In the event that a stockholder
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who acquired shares of our capital stock prior to this offering were to prevail in a claim that the Series D charter was
invalid, persons listed on our stock ledger as owning shares of our capital stock could have claims against us for
additional or different shares, for monetary damages or both, depending on what shares they hold and when they
originally purchased them from us.

Holders of any shares of common stock traceable to shares of common stock outstanding prior to the filing of the
Series D charter could have a claim to a number of shares equal to 100 times the amount currently shown on our stock
ledger. This is because the Series D charter effected a 1-for-100 reverse stock split, and if the Series D charter were
held to be invalid, then such holders could claim that the reverse stock split never occurred. Similarly, because the
Series D charter, in addition to the reverse stock split described above, provided for the automatic conversion into
shares of common stock of all of the then-outstanding shares of Series A preferred stock, Series B preferred stock,
Series C1 preferred stock and Series C2 preferred stock held by investors that did not purchase their full pro rata
allocation in the Series D financing, holders of any shares of common stock traceable to such converted preferred
shares could have a claim that, were the Series D charter held invalid, such shares of preferred stock were never
converted and are still outstanding in an amount equal to 100 times the amount shown on our stock ledger at the time
of their conversion. A determination that the Series D charter was invalid also could raise concerns about the validity
of our subsequently adopted certificates of incorporation, including those adopted in connection with our Series E, F,
G and H preferred stock financings. As a result, holders of any shares of common stock traceable to shares of Series A
preferred stock, Series B preferred stock, Series C1
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preferred stock and Series C2 preferred stock who did purchase their full pro rata allocation in the Series D financing
also could have a claim that such preferred shares remain outstanding in an amount equal to 100 times the amount
shown on our stock ledger at the time of their later conversion, and holders of any shares of capital stock that were
purchased, or are traceable only to shares originally purchased, after the filing of the Series D charter could have
contractual or other claims for monetary damages against us based on the amount paid for such shares.

We have consulted with legal counsel regarding the validity of the Series D charter. It is our position and belief, based
in part on our consultation with legal counsel, that the Series D charter was validly approved by our board of directors
and stockholders at the time of the Series D financing, and as a result, the corporate actions effected by the filing of
the Series D charter, including the 1-for-100 reverse stock split, and the conversion into shares of common stock of
any shares of Series A preferred stock, Series B preferred stock, Series C1 preferred stock and Series C2 preferred
stock held by any stockholder who did not purchase its full pro rata allocation in the Series D financing, validly
occurred.

Nevertheless, to address this matter and any other matters that could raise concerns about our current capital structure,
we conducted an Exchange Offer in 2011 to provide holders of outstanding shares of capital stock the opportunity to
exchange each share of capital stock shown as owned by such holder, together with any claims relating to the original
acquisition of such share, or of the shares from which it was converted or reclassified, including claims for additional
or different shares of our capital stock and claims for monetary damages (each such share, together with such claims,
referred to as an Existing Share), for one share of the same class and series of capital stock (each, referred to as an
Exchange Share). As part of the consideration for the Exchange Shares issued, each participating holder also was
required to agree that, following the Exchange Offer, the Exchange Shares would represent their entire equity interest
in and to Envivio (other than unexercised stock options or warrants outstanding as of the date of the closing of the
Exchange Offer) and to provide us a release from any claims that such holder may have relating to such holder�s
acquisition of the outstanding shares being tendered or of the shares from which they were converted or reclassified.

Holders of more than 99% of the Existing Shares, measured on an as-converted basis based on the conversion ratios
set forth in our existing certificate of incorporation, participated in the Exchange Offer and, therefore, surrendered in
the exchange all claims relating to the original acquisition of their shares (or their acquisition of shares upon the
conversion or reclassification of those original shares), and also both agreed that the Exchange Shares they received in
the Exchange Offer represent their entire equity interest in and to Envivio (other than unexercised stock options or
warrants outstanding as of the date of the closing of the Exchange Offer) and provided us a release from any and all
claims that such holder may have relating to such holder�s acquisition of the outstanding shares being tendered or of
the shares from which they were converted or reclassified.

Even though we have completed the Exchange Offer with almost all of our outstanding shares participating, the
stockholders who did not participate in the Exchange Offer may bring claims against us for additional or different
shares, for monetary damages or both, depending on what shares they hold and when they originally acquired them
from us. These claims, regardless of outcome, could result in substantial expense and significant diversion of the
efforts of our management. In the event each such non-participating stockholder prevails on a claim against us, we
could be required to pay substantial damages or issue additional shares of our common stock, or both, which could
have a material adverse effect on our operating results, financial condition and cash flows and you may incur
additional dilution.

Our stock price may be volatile.

Our common stock has a limited trading history. The trading price of our common stock is likely to be highly volatile
and could be subject to wide fluctuations in response to various factors, some of which are beyond our control. For
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example, the closing sale price per share of our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market was $5.70 on
August 13, 2012 and $2.48 on August 14, 2012. Factors that may lead to volatility in our stock price include:

� actual or anticipated variation in our and our competitors� results of operations;

� announcements by us or our competitors of new products, new or terminated significant contracts,
commercial relationships or capital commitments;

� issuance of new securities analysts� reports or changed recommendations for our stock;

� developments or disputes concerning our intellectual property or other proprietary rights;

� commencement of, or our involvement in, litigation;

� announced or completed acquisitions of businesses or technologies by us or our competitors;

� any major change in our management; and

� general economic conditions and slow or negative growth of our markets.
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In addition, the stock market in general, and the market for technology companies in particular, has experienced
extreme price and volume fluctuations that have often been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance
of those companies. Broad market and industry factors may seriously affect the market price of our common stock,
regardless of our actual operating performance. In addition, in the past, following periods of volatility in the overall
market and the market price of a particular company�s securities, securities class action litigation has often been
instituted against these companies. This litigation, if instituted against us, could result in substantial costs and a
diversion of our management�s attention and resources.

We have been named as a defendant in a purported securities class action law suit. This, and other litigation could
cause us to incur substantial costs and divert our attention and resources.

In the past, securities class action litigation has often been brought against a company following periods of volatility
in the market price of its securities. Companies such as ours in the high technology industry are particularly vulnerable
to this kind of litigation due to the high volatility of their stock prices. On October 5, 2012, we were named, among
other defendants, in a purported class action on behalf of purchasers of shares issued in our IPO that generally alleges
that the registration statement for our IPO contained materially false or misleading statements. This and any future
lawsuits to which we may become a party will likely be expensive and time consuming to investigate, defend and
resolve, and will divert our management�s attention. Any litigation to which we are a party may result in an onerous or
unfavorable judgment that may not be reversed upon appeal or in payments of substantial monetary damages or fines,
or we may decide to settle lawsuits on similarly unfavorable terms, which could adversely affect our business,
financial conditions, or results of operations.

If securities or industry analysts issue an adverse opinion regarding our stock or do not publish research or reports
about our business, our stock price and trading volume could decline.

The trading market for our common stock will depend in part on the research and reports that equity research analysts
publish about us and our business. We do not control these analysts or the content and opinions included in their
reports. The price of our common stock could decline if one or more equity research analysts downgrade our common
stock or if those analysts issue other unfavorable commentary or cease publishing reports about us or our business. If
one or more equity research analysts cease coverage of our company, we could lose visibility in the market, which in
turn could cause our stock price to decline. Further, securities analysts may elect not to provide research coverage of
our common stock after the completion of this offering, and such lack of research coverage may adversely affect the
market price of our common stock.

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents and under Delaware law could make an acquisition of us,
which may be beneficial to our stockholders, more difficult and may prevent attempts by our stockholders to
replace or remove our current management and limit the market price of our common stock.

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, as expected to be restated immediately prior to the closing of
this offering, may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of control or changes in our management. These
provisions may frustrate or prevent any attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management by
making it more difficult for stockholders to replace members of our board of directors, which is responsible for
appointing the members of our management. These provisions include the following:

� the right of our board of directors to elect a director to fill a vacancy created by the expansion of our board of
directors;
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� the classification of our board of directors so that only a portion of our directors are elected each year, with
each director serving a three-year term;

� the requirement for advance notice for nominations for election to our board of directors or for proposing
matters that can be acted upon at a stockholders� meeting;

� the ability of our board of directors to alter our bylaws without obtaining stockholder approval;

� the ability of our board of directors to issue, without stockholder approval, up to 2,500,000 shares of
preferred stock with rights set by our board of directors, which rights could be senior to those of common
stock;

� the required approval of holders of at least two-thirds of the shares entitled to vote at an election of directors
to adopt, amend or repeal our bylaws or amend or repeal the provisions of our certificate of incorporation
regarding the election and removal of directors and the ability of stockholders to take action by written
consent; and

� the elimination of the right of stockholders to call a special meeting of stockholders and to take action by
written consent.

In addition, because we are incorporated in Delaware, we are governed by the provisions of Section 203 of the
General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. These provisions may prohibit or restrict large stockholders, in
particular those owning 15% or more of our outstanding voting stock, from merging or combining with us. These
provisions in our certificate of incorporation
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and bylaws and under Delaware law could discourage potential takeover attempts and could reduce the price that
investors might be willing to pay for shares of our common stock in the future and result in our market price being
lower than it would without these provisions.

We have never paid dividends on our capital stock, and we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the
foreseeable future.

We have paid no cash dividends on any of our classes of capital stock to date, have contractual restrictions against
paying cash dividends and currently intend to retain our future earnings to fund the development and growth of our
business. As a result, capital appreciation, if any, of our common stock will be the sole source of gain for the
foreseeable future.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

On April 24, 2012, our registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-173529) was declared effective for our initial
public offering pursuant to which we sold 6,500,000 shares of common stock at a public offering price of $9.00 per
share for an aggregate offering price of $54.4 million in proceeds, net of underwriters� discounts and commissions, but
before deducting offering-related expenses. Goldman, Sachs & Co. and Deutsche Bank Securities, Inc. acted as joint
book running managers and representatives of the underwriters for the offering, Stifel, Nicolaus & Company,
Incorporated and William Blair & Company, L.L.C. acted as co-managers for the offering.

As a result of our initial public offering, we received net proceeds of $49.4 million, after deducting underwriting
discounts and commissions and other offering expenses. None of the expenses associated with the initial public
offering were paid to directors, officers or persons owning ten percent or more of our common stock or to their
associates, or to our affiliates.

We currently intend to use the net proceeds received by us from the offering for working capital and general corporate
purposes, including further expansion of our sales and marketing efforts, continued investments in research and
development and for capital expenditures. Specifically, we intend to hire additional personnel to support the growth in
our business. In addition, we may use a portion of the proceeds for acquisitions of complementary businesses,
technologies or other assets. We have no agreements with respect to any material acquisitions at this time and we have
not allocated specific amounts of net proceeds for any of these purposes. As of July 31, 2013, the net offering
proceeds have been invested in money market funds and high credit quality commercial paper and corporate bonds.
There has been no material change in the planned use of proceeds from our initial public offering as described in our
final prospectus filed with the SEC pursuant to Rule 424(b) on April 25, 2012.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not Applicable.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Number Exhibit Index

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) promulgated under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) promulgated under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

32.1�� Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS* XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document

101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

�� The certifications attached as Exhibit 32.1 accompany this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and shall not be deemed
�filed� by the Registrant for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

* In accordance with Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, the information in these exhibits is furnished and deemed not
filed or part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of
1933, is deemed not filed for purposes of section 18 of the Exchange Act of 1934, and otherwise is not subject to
liability under these sections.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

ENVIVIO, INC.

By: /s/ Erik E. Miller
Erik E. Miller

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and Accounting
Officer)

Date: September 11, 2013
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